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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
aisclaim any liability whatsoever for any 1oss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Silk Road Energy
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Dear Valued Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure on behalf of the board (“Board”) of
Directors of Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) to report on the activities and
progress of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded an audited consolidated revenue and loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounting to
approximately HK$366.63 million and HK$130.04 million respectively
for the Year, representing an increase of 11.60% and 103.65%
respectively compared with last year.

During the Year, the Group has completed the acquisition of the
business for provision of coal mining services, which became the
principal business of the Group in the Year. Since the coal industry was
suffering from weak market conditions due to over production, the
performance of this business is not so promising as expected, but it
still contributed an operating profit of approximately RMB44.73 million
(before amortisation and impairment loss) to the Group. Due to the
fluctuation of the prices of mineral products, the Group has temporarily
suspense the trading of mineral products. The performance of other
business segment is in line with last year's performance.

Looking forward into late 2016, we expect that market sentiment on
coal industry will remain at a low ebb. Accordingly, the performance
of coal mining services business is not likely to have significant
improvement in the coming year. In order to maximize the returns to
the Group, the Group tap into the market of environmentally friendly
heating system powered by clean energy, following the launch of
favourable policies by the Chinese Government to help boost the
environmental heat supply industry, we hope our new heat supply
operations will become a profit driver in the long run. Backed by our
strategy of business diversification and our early prudent move into
new business sectors, we have confident that the Group will have a
promising prospect.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business
associates of the Group for their continued support;, and also to
every Director, the management team and all staff for their valuable
contribution during the Year.

Cai Da
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 September 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$366.63 million (2015: HK$328.51 million),
representing an increase of 11.60% as compared with that of the
corresponding year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the
contribution from the provision of coal mining services business
despite partially setoff by the decrease in trading of other mineral
products.

The gross profit for the year was approximately HK$122.52 million
(2015: HK$40.71 million), representing 200.96% growth as compared to
the corresponding year while the gross profit margin increased from
12.39% t0 33.42%. The increase in gross profit and margin was due to
the shift of the major revenue generator from the trading business to
the business of provision of coal mining services after the completion
of acquisition of Everbest Return Limited (“Everbest Return”) and its
subsidiaries (“Everbest Return Group”), and the newly acquired coal
mining services business with a relatively high gross profit ratio as
compared to the trading business.

The group recorded a gain on write back of promissory notes issued of
approximately HK$97.88 million during the Year. Such gain was resulted
from an adjustment to the consideration for the acquisition of Everbest
Return Group pursuant to the terms of sales and purchase agreement.
The Group also recorded impairment loss recognized in respect of
customer contracts amounted to HK$95.37 million. The recognition of
impairment loss was mainly due to the performance of coal mining
services business did not meet the expectation and its prospect was
not so promising as expected. In addition, the group also recognized
impairment losses on goodwill, property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets and inventories of HK$6.99 million,
HK$29.99 million, HK$1.19 million and HK$6.42 million respectively
relating to the fluorite business. The recognition of impairment losses
was mainly due to the continuing low market prices for fluorite
products in recent years and the group has suspended its operations
since 2015.
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The investment and other income was increase from HK$2.53 million
to HK$31.37 million, primarily due to the dividend income of HK$16.41
million, represent the fair value of bonus shares received by the Group
from the securities investment and the gain of HK$13.69 million on
disposal of securities.

The increases in selling and distribution expenses from HK$0.12 million
to HK$0.55 million, other operating expenses from HK$10.94 million
to HK$12.49 million, amortization expense of customer contracts of
HK$28.20 million and finance costs of HK$13.47 million were mainly
due to the increase in operating scale as a result of newly acquired
coal mining services business.

The Group recorded a loss arising on change in fair value of the listed
securities amounted to HK$15.76 million (2015: gain of HK$7.06 million)
from the investment in held-for-trading securities, a share of loss
of approximately HK$82.02 million (2015: HK$5.19 million) from the
investment in the associated companies and an impairment 10ss of
HK$60.00 million on the amount due from associates. Such losses were
mainly as a result of the volatility of the Hong Kong securities market
during the reporting year.

In conclusion, loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$130.04 million (2015: HK$63.86 million).
The increase in loss was mainly due to the share of loss of associate
and the increase in impairment losses recognized during the Year.

PROVISION OF COAL MINING SERVICES

During the Year, the Group has diversified into the business of provision
of coal mining services upon the completion of acquisition of Everbest
Return Group on 31 July 2015. Following completion, Everbest Return
Group became subsidiaries of the Company and accordingly, the
results of it were consolidated into the Group’s accounts from 1
August 2015. Everbest Return Group is principally engaged in the
provision of mine construction engineering, mechanical equipment
installation and coal production and technical services in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC").
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Everbest Return Group provided coal mining services to six coal
mines during the Year under the terms of the respective management
contracts signed between Everbest Return Group and the mine
owners. The major revenue of Everbest Return Group composes of
service incomes from coal production and excavation works. During
the eleven months ended 30 June 2016, approximately 13.48 million
tonnes of coal had been produced and approximately 38.4 kilometres
of tunnels had been excavated by Everbest Return Group.

During the Year, the Group’s provision of coal mining services recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$298.74 million, which accounted
for 81.5% of the Group’s total revenue, and contributed a segment
loss after deducting amortization and impairment loss of customer
contracts of HK$50.71 million. The performance did not meet the
expectation due to:

(1) Unfavourable market conditions of coal industry; and

(2)  Falling prices and rising costs have led to a decline in margins
to a level that the coal mine owner believed that further
development at new coals was not justify and, therefore, have
deferred the commencement of coal production at new mine
until a stronger pricing environment is realized.

FLUORITE PROCESSING AND TRADING
BUSINESS

The Group owns a fluorite powder processing factory and holds two
mining licenses in respect of two fluorite mines located in Outer
Mongolia. The Group suspended the operations of this business
segment due to the continuing decrease in the market prices of
fluorite products in the past few years. As a result, an insignificant
revenue of HK$1.31 million was generated and a loss of HK$50.12
million (2015: HK$37.19 million) from the fluorite processing and trading
business during the Year. The increase in loss was primarily due to
the increase of impairment losses. After reviewing the mines in QOuter
Mongolia, the resumption of operations of fluorite processing and
trading business seems remote because of the continuing unfavorable
market conditions and the highly uncertain future market conditions.
Accordingly, provision on impairment losses on goodwill, property,
plant and equipment, exploration and evaluation assets and inventory
amounted to HK$44.59 million (2015: HK$15.25 million) was made.
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TRADING OF OTHER MINERAL PRODUCTS

The Group operated its trading of other mineral products (other than
fluorites products) in the PRC had contributed substantially to the
Group's total revenue during the corresponding year but the gross
profit margin of the trading business is low. Therefore, the management
reallocated the resources of the Group to other businesses with higher
profit margin. As a result, the revenue was significantly decrease
from HK$274.27 million to HK$12.95 million, representing a decrease
of 95.3% and a loss of HK$7.22 million (2015: HK$5.45 million) was
recorded from the trading of other mineral products during the Year.

ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS
BUSINESS

The Group provided advertising and public relations services through
PR ASIA Consultants Limited (the “PR ASIA"), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability. PR ASIA offers strategic consulting
services in corporate communications, media relations, investor
relations, issue/crisis management, media training and event
management to a wide range of listed and non-listed companies in
both Hong Kong and China.

On 3 June 2015, the Group, as vendor, entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with Mr. Ling Yee Fai (“Mr. Ling"), as purchaser,
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell, and Mr. Ling
conditionally agreed to acquire, 40% of the equity interests of PR Asia,
at a total consideration of HK$13 million. Following the completion of
the disposal in October 2015, PR Asia remained as a subsidiary of the
Company and accordingly, its result was continued to consolidate into
the Group's accounts. (Details of the disposal transaction are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 3 June 2015 and 23 October
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 25 September 2015.)

During the Year, the advertising and public relations services
contributed the revenue of approximately HK$41.21 million (2015:
39.96 million), which accounted for 11.2% of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year, and a profit of HK$13.16 million (2015: HK$16.57 million).
The advertising and public relations services continued to contribute
stable source of income to the Group. The management plans to
diversify its business into new segment such as undertaking IPO
projects. Thanks to the closer economic tie between the Mainland
and Hong Kong, the local financial market has seen a rapid pace of
development that drives the business of PR ASIA and improved its
performance.
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MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The Group has held a money lenders license under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong) since 2014. During the Year,
the loan interest incomes recorded the revenue of approximately
HK$12.42 million (2015: HK$5.92 million) and a profit of approximately
HK$9.61 million (2015: HK$1.73 million). The increases in revenue and
profit were mainly due to the Group allocate more resources in this
segment during the Year. In general, the principal terms of the loans
granted by the group were unsecured, with credit terms ranging
from six months to one year and the interest rate was about 10% per
annum.

INVESTMENT IN HELD-FOR-TRADING
SECURITIES

The Company had held-for-trading investment in certain listed
securities in Hong Kong, the market value amounted to approximately
HK$69.62 million as at 30 June 2016 (2015: HK$19.21 million). During
the Year, a gain on disposal of shares amounted to HK$13.69 million
and a loss arising on change in fair value of the listed securities of
approximately HK$15.76 million (2015: gain of HK$7.06 million) were
recorded. The investment in the listed securities is also the Group's
treasury policies to make use of certain surplus funds retained by the
Group.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group holds 30% equity interest in Asset
Management International Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Asset Management Group”). During the Year, an independent third
party subscribed 375 new shares of Asset Management International
Limited, which diluted the shareholding of the Group in Asset
Management Group from 40% to 30%. After the subscription, the Asset
Management Group remained as an associated company of the Group.
Asset Management Group engages principally in property and security
investments.
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The Group recorded a share of loss of approximately HK$82.02 million
(2015: HK$5.19 million) from the investment in Asset Management
Group for the Year. The increase in losses was mainly due to the
change in the fair values of the listed securities held by the Assets
Management Group. The interest in associates was significantly
decreased from HK$279.10 million to HK$0.42 million from 30 June
2015 to 30 June 2016. The decrease was due to the loss incurred by
the Asset Management Group and the profit distribution made by
Asset Management Group during the Year. The Group was entitled
to receive dividends amounting to HK$212 million of which HK$30.50
million was received by the Group during the Year. The remaining
balance of dividend receivable was recorded under the header of
amounts due from associates. Since the fair value of assets held by the
associated companies are insufficient to cover outstanding balance,
HK$60.00 million impairment loss was recognized in the accounts.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$216.09 million (2015: HK$100.88 million). Net current
assets amounted to approximately HK$639.54 million (2015: HK$244.81
million).

As at 30 June 2016, the current ratio (defined as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 7.07 times (2015:
22.64 times). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total liabilities to total
assets, was approximately 0.30 (2015: 0.02).

The Group had no any bank borrowing as at 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

CAPITAL RESOURCES

On 29 June 2015, the Board proposed to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company to HK$1,500,000,000 divided into
30,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 20,000,000,000
shares which shall rank equally with each other in all respects. The
increase of authorised share capital was approved in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 July 2015. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 13 May 2015 and 28 June 2015
and the circular of the Company dated 29 June 2015.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

On 21 April 2016, the Company completed the placing of an aggregate
of 1,046,260,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company
through the placing agents to independent placees at a placing
price of HK$0.195 per share pursuant to placing agreements dated
7 April 2016 and 8 April 2016 entered into among the Company
and the placing agents. The gross proceeds from the placing was
approximately HK$204 million and the net proceeds from the placing
was of approximately HK$201 million. 80% (approximately HK$160
million) of the net proceeds from the placing were intended to be used
for the development in the business of provision of services related
to clean energy, including but not limited to (i) possible investment
in a company in Beijing and (ii) possible establishment of a joint
venture company with that company, principal business activities of
the Company in Beijing is providing services related to clean energy
as contemplated under the framework agreement as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 16 March 2016 and the
remaining 20% (approximately HK$41 million) of net proceeds would
be used as general working capital. The net proceeds raised per
placing share was approximately HK$0.1924 per Share.

After due and careful consideration, the directors considered that
it was in the best interest of the Company not to proceed with the
transactions contemplated under the above mentioned framework
agreement and the termination will not have any material adverse
effect on the existing business, operations and financial position of
the Group. Anyway, the Group still intend to use 80% of the proceeds
for the development in the business of provision of services related to
clean energy. More specifically, the Group will tap into the market of
environmentally friendly heating system powered by clean energy. As
at the date of report, the Group had utilized approximately HK$43.80
million for the investment in the joint ventures for the provision of heat
services and purchasing heat supply equipment, and approximately
HK$30.45 million for general working capital. The remaining balance
of the net proceeds was placed in bank accounts, the Group will
apply the remaining net proceeds in the manner set out in the
announcement.
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UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 5 September 2014, an aggregate of 1,000,000,000 unlisted warrants
was fully placed and issued to not fewer than six placees at the
issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and Kingston Securities Limited. The holders of the unlisted
warrants shall have the rights to subscribe for up to 1,000,000,000
Shares in aggregate at an initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per
warrant share, within one year from the date of issue. Upon the
exercise in full of the subscription rights attaching to the unlisted
warrants, 1,000,000,000 new shares would be allotted and issued by
the Company. There was a total of 620,000,000 shares being issued
upon the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the unlisted
warrants by its holders during the year ended 30 June 2015 and a total
of 380,000,000 unlisted warrants expired on 4 September 2015, being
one year from the date of issue. No unlisted warrants were exercised
by its holders during the Year.

EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated either in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or U.S.
dollars. It is the Group’s policy for its operating entities to operate in
their corresponding local currencies to minimize currency risks.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS

(1) On 2 April 2015, Million Nature Holdings Limited, as purchaser,
entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Mr. Hu
Zhixiong (a connected person of the Company) and Ms. Fan
Aixian, as vendors. Pursuant to the agreement, the vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Everbest
Return. The acquisition was completed on 31 July 2015. Details of
the acquisition transaction are set out in the Company's circular
dated 30 June 2015.

(2) On 3 June 2015, the Group, as vendor, entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Mr. Ling, as purchaser, pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell, and Mr. Ling
conditionally agreed to acquire, 40% of the equity interests
of PR ASIA. The disposal was completed on 23 October 2015.
Details of the disposal transaction are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 3 June 2015 and 23 October 2015 and the
circular of the Company dated 25 September 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associates of the Group in the Year.
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LITIGATIONS
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During 2013 and 2014, a customer of Ordos City Tai Pu Mining
Engineering Company Limited (“Tai Pu”) (an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Everbest Return Group), failed to pay its
service fees to Tai Pu on time pursuant to the contracts executed
on 1 January 2012 and 1 May 2012 with respect to the provision
of coal mining services and mine construction engineering
services (collectively, the “Service Contracts”).

Tai Pu has filed a claim against the customer in RZH &4
R ZHTm AR ARER on 23 September 2014 (Inner
Mongolia Ordos City Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Ordos
City Intermediate People’s Court”) for the breach of the Service
Contracts. Tai Pu had fully recognised impairment loss on trade
receivables due from the customer of approximately RMB35.9
million during the year ended 31 December 2014. The Ordos
City Intermediate People’s Court has rendered its decision
pursuant to which, inter alia, the customer shall pay Tai Pu (i)
approximately RMB41.6 million as damages for the failure to
pay the Service Contracts service fees; and (i) RMB1 million as
damages for breach of the Service Contracts. As at 31 December
2015, Tai Pu has not received the said judgement sum. In view of
the financial situation of the customer, the Group considered that
the recovery of the judgement sum is unlikely. As the financial
impacts had been fully reflected in previous year's account of Tai
Pu, no material financial impacts were expected.

Since 9 August 2013, the Group, as the lender, entered a loan
agreement and certain supplemental agreements with an
individual (the "Defendant”), as the borrower, for the loan
arrangement with the amount of HK$7.5 million. The loan
was guaranteed by the Defendant and another individual (the
“Guarantor”). On 8 August 2015, the Defendant failed to repay
the principal of HK$7.5 million and outstanding interest of
HK$187,500. Therefore, the Group was filed the writ of summons
to the High Court on 13 January 2016.
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0On 22 August 2016, the Group received the final judgement from
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
The judgement was that the Defendant and the Guarantor do pay
the Group:

a)  the sum of HK$7,500,000 together with interest thereon at
the rate of 2% per calendar month from 9 August 2015 to
the date of payment;

b) interest of HK$187,500 from 9 February 2015 to 8 August
2015; and

C)  HK$11,045 fixed cost.

In view of the financial situation of the Defendant and the
Guarantor, the Group considered that the recovery of the
judgement sum is remote. Accordingly, the group has recorded
HK$1.9 million interest income during the Year but made a fully
provision for impairment on it. No significant adverse financial
impact to the Group is expected.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other material litigations of the
Group in the Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no significant capital commitment.

DONATION

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$6 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2016, none of the assets of the Group were pledged as
security for any banking facilities.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2016, there were 1,527 staff members employed by the
Group.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and their respective educational background, experience and
performance. On top of the regular remuneration and discretionary
bonus, share options may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group's performance as well as individual's
performance. In addition, each employee enjoys mandatory provident
fund, medical allowance and other fringe benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

OUTLOOK

The coal industry was suffered by various factors such as the
slowdown in domestic macro-economic growth, control of total
energy consumption and optimization of energy structure. There was a
sustained oversupply in the coal industry, resulting in descending coal
price. In 2016, the Chinese government implemented policy of limiting
coal production to prop up prices, the coal price gradually recovered
but still subdued at low level. To cope with the challenging operating
environment of the industry, the mine owners may impose strictly
costs control measures and further demand for a lower contract
price in the renewal of management contracts between them and the
Group. In addition, the production capacity would be affected by the
production limitation policy. This may affect the future performance of
the segment of provision of coal mining services.

In view of the fluctuation in the prices of mineral products, the Group
will pay close attention to the changes in the macroeconomic situation
and carry out the trading business in a cautious manner.

On the other hand, the Group is cautiously optimistic on the
advertising and public relations business. This business is driven by the
potential long-term economic growth between China and Hong Kong
as well as the opportunities brought by the Mainland-Hong Kong Stock
Connect. The expanding client base from PR ASIA enables the Group to
sustain its business growth momentum and maintain a stable income
source in the future.
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After the year end, the Group has acquired 51% of a company engaged
in the operation of energy saving and environmentally friendly heating
system and provision of related services. The company indirectly owns
a heating system project in Heze City of Shandong Province of the
PRC. The country government has granted the Company a 30-year
exclusivity to supply heat in Longgu Town until the end of 2045. The
operation of the Company is expected to generate heating supplies
covering an area of 1.85 million square meters. The Directors believe
this is a significant milestone for the Company as this agreement
marks the initial penetration point into a rapidly growing market.

Following the acquisition of the heat supply project of Shandong
in August 2016, the Group has been focusing on development of
heat supply business. The Group will establish certain subsidiaries
in Shandong, Tianjin and lJiangsu for the operation of heat supply
business. The Group intends to enter into cooperation agreements and
establishing joint ventures with business partners in relevant areas. The
Group believes that the cooperation with various business partners
will enable us to jointly develop and expand heat supply business
by utilising the resources and strengths of each party with an aim to
expand the business scope and market share rapidly on heat supply
business.

There has been an increase in demand for heating system and
such growing trend is expected to continue in coming years due to
rapid urbanisation in the PRC. Furthermore, as various government
policies have been implemented to encourage development of
environmentally friendly heating systems to replace those powered
by coal energy thereby reducing emissions, the Group can also take
advantage of the favourable policies to develop its clean energy
heating business in the PRC. Accordingly, the Company is optimistic
about the prospect of the heat market, especially the segment of
environmentally friendly heating system, to generate greater value for
the Group and maximise returns to shareholders of the Company.

In light with increasing domestic market demand coped with
encouraging policies issued by government of the PRC, the Group
is expecting rapid development in our heat supply business with
promising prospect.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cai Da, aged 41, joined the Company as an executive Director
and vice chairman of the Company (the “Vice Chairman”) on 16 May
2013. He ceased to be vice chairman and was appointed as the
chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) on 9 January 2015. Mr.
Cai holds a Master degrees in Business Administration from Bangor
University in Wales, United Kingdom and Civil Engineering Degree from
Hunan University of Science and Technology. Mr. Cai has been working
and taking the senior managerial positions in a number of mining
companies incorporated in the PRC. Mr. Cai has accumulated over 10
years of experience in oil refinery, mining and corporate management
field. Mr. Cai is the vice president of Shenzhen General Chamber of
Commerce and also the chairman of Zhenggi Capital Holdings Limited.
Mr. Cai had been an executive director, chairman and chief executive
officer of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8009) during
the period from 26 February 2015 to 9 May 2016 and an executive
director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(stock code: 8085) during the period from 30 September 2011 to 4
August 2014.

Mr. Zhou, Francis Bingrong, aged 31, joined the Company as an
executive Director and Vice Chairman on 11 March 2016. Mr. Zhou
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Asian Studies
from Bowdoin College in Brunswick, Maine, United States. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has held senior equity research positions
with prominent regional and China-based investment banks, such as
China International Capital Corporation (HK) Limited and Daiwa Capital
Markets Hong Kong Limited. He recently held the position of Vice
President of Financial Planning & Analysis for Galaxy Entertainment
Group. Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in corporate finance and
strategy, financial analysis and the capital markets.
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Mr. Chen Youhua, aged 44, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 26 November 2012. He appointed to act as chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEQ") on 13 June 2016. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from Shandong Economics College,
PRC and an Executive Master Degree of Business Administration from
Inner Mongolia University, PRC. Mr. Chen has worked for a number
of mining companies in the PRC, taking the positions of accounting
manager or financial controller in such companies. Mr. Chen had been
an executive director of Chun Sing Engineering Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2277) during the period from 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2016.
Mr. Chen has accumulated over 15 years of working experience in the
fields of cost accounting, financial and corporate management.

Mr. Hu Zhixiong, aged 48, joined the Company as an executive
Director and CEO on 28 August 2015. He ceased to be CEO on 13 June
2016. Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor Degree from Inner Mongolia Normal
University. He is the founder and director of Tai Pu, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the completion of the
acquisition of Everbest Return Limited by the Group on 31 July 2015.
Mr. Hu has accumulated over 10 years of working experience in the
trading of coal and coal mining.

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 54, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009. Mr. Li acted as Chairman during the
period from 22 November 2011 to 9 January 2015. He has accumulated
over 24 years of experience in sales related business and held senior
positions in various companies.

Mr. Liu Baoyu, aged 43, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 18 May 2016. Mr. Liu holds a Master degree in Law from Sun Yat
Sen University and a Master Degree in Business Administration from
Shenzhen University. He also holds a Certificate of National Legal
Profession Quialification in China. Prior to joining the Group, he has
been a lawyer practicing in the PRC and an investment controller in the
Beijing office of an international investment Group. He has extensive
experience in the fields of engineering, legal services and investment.
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Profiles of Directors
SSEfE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang zhixiang, aged 58, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 November 2014. He is a member of
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from
Hebei Radio & TV University, major in Electronic Studies. He is also
a certified senior electric and mechanical engineer. Mr. Wang has
been serving certain sizable coal mining companies in the PRC. He
has gained over 30 years of working experience in model selection,
installation and design of electric and mechanical equipment,
automation control system and power supply system in relation to the
coal mining industry.

Ms. Wong Na Na, aged 43, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2015. She is a chairman of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in
Accountancy and Management Studies from University of Wollongong
in Australia. She is also an associate member of Certified Practising
Accountant Australia and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong has accumulated
over 10 years of working experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management.

Ms. Feng lJibei, aged 58, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 August 2016. She is a member of Audit
committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Ms. Feng holds a bachelor's degree in Heating, Ventilation and Air-
conditioning from Beijing Construction Engineering College (now
known as Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture).
She also holds a certificate of professor-level senior engineer issued
by Beijing Senior Specialized Technique Qualification Evaluation
Committee. Ms. Feng is currently an advisory member of Technical
Committee on Heating Supply Standardization under Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC. Prior to joining the
Group, she has been working over thirty years in Beijing Gas & Heating
Engineering Design Institute, a state owned enterprise which specified
in gas and heating engineering design and her last position before
retirement was deputy chief engineer. She has extensive experience in
the heating supply industry.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREIOWRS

The Board is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard. The Board believes that a good corporate governance
standard will provide a framework for the Group to formulate the
business strategies and policies, and manage the associated risks
through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency of the Group and strengthen the accountability to the
shareholders and creditors of the Company:.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standards of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company
has applied the principles of and complied with all the applicable code
provisions and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Company regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company and the implementation of the investment policy of the
Company, which includes, inter alia, the adoption of long term
corporate strategies, assessment of investment projects, supervision
of the management of the Company to ensure that the Company’s
investments are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the
Company, and reviewing financial performance.

The Board currently has nine Directors, among them, six are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.
Members of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in valuable
contributions and advices for the development of the Group’s
business.
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The Board holds meeting on a regular basis and will meet on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required. The Board held 19 meetings during the Year. Directors
are aware that they should give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The attendance of each Director for the Board

meeting is set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cai Da — Chairman
Mr. Zhou, Francis Bingrong — Vice Chairman
(@ppointed on 11 March 2016)
Mr. Chen Youhua — Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Hu Zhixiong
(@ppointed on 28 August 2015)
Mr. Li Wai Hung
M. Liu Baoyu
(@appointed on 18 May 2016)
Mr. Guo Xiang
(resigned with effect from 18 May 2016)
Mr. Chen Liang
(resigned with effect from 11 March 2016)
Mr. Miao Tianfu
(resigned with effect from 28 August 2015)
Mr. Johnny Huang
(resigned with effect from 28 August 2015)
Mr. An Fengcun
(resigned with effect from 14 August 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Wong Na Na

(appointed on 9 September 2015)
Mr. Wang Zhixiang
Ms. Feng Jibei

(@ppointed on 16 August 2016)
Mr. Yan Shengxian

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2016)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

(retired with effect from 18 November 2015)
Ms. Tang Qing

(resigned with effect from 9 September 2015)
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report.
The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business
or family relationship among members of the Board and between
the Chairman and the CEO as at 30 June 2016. All of them are free
to exercise their individual judgment. Directors have been supplied
with adequate and relevant information in a timely manner. The
Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The Company will,
upon request, provide separate independent professional advice to
the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the Company.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The Board delegates the day-
to-day management, administration and operation of the Group's
business to the management of the relevant segments and divisions.
The management is responsible for the implementation and adoption
of the Company’s strategies and policies. The delegated functions and
tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The newly
appointed Directors were provided with an induction and information
to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as their responsibilities under
relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations. Up to the date of this
report, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending training course, or relating materials/
in house briefing on the topics related to corporate governance
and regulations. All Directors had confirmed their participating in
continuous professional development for the year ended 30 June 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Man Wo, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, was appointed as company
secretary of the Company on 26 November 2015. According to the
requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Ngai has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
financial year ended 30 June 2016.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the Chairman and the CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

To reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility, the roles
of the Chairman and CEO are currently segregated and performed by
Mr. Cai Da and Mr. Chen Youhua.

The Chairman is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. In addition, the Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. With the
support of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at the Board meetings.

The CEO is in charge of the Company's day-to-day management and
operations and focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
three independent non-executive Directors which representing at least
one third of the Board, and two of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board prepares
its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with
required standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate
system to protect the interests and shareholders of the Company. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one year.
They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") at least once every three
years in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Board established three board
committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
committee and Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the board committees are posted on the GEM website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na Na (committee chairman), Mr. Wang
Zhixiang and Ms. Feng Jibei.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making
recommendation to the Board on policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;
and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year
and reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance of each member
during the Year is set out below:

RAFR HFHZEEBZRTHRERLRA AR
AIZFHMER FERATEZTREREEB 2RI
NERRAEESHBEEZRESTLSRAEEBZEES
B Rr 8 - NFEE BB 2 B ERBESII T

Number of
meetings
attended

Members RE HEEBRE
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman T2 —

(appointed on 9 September 2015) (R=ZF—AFNANAEZ(E) 2/2
Mr. Wang Zhixiang FREFLEE 2/2
Ms. Feng Jibei IS+

(@ppointed on 16 August 2016) (R=ZF—NFNNAF+NAEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Yan Shengxian BB A

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2016) (RZF—NFNH A NHEFE) 4/4
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEHELE

(retired on 18 November 2015) (R=ZFBE—nFE+—HFT/NHRE) 2/2
Ms. Tang Qing mEX T

(resigned with effect from 9 September 2015) (R=ZF—AHFNAHNHFHEF) 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. On
29 August 2013, the Board resolved the board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) to be adopted by the Nomination Committee.
The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to diversity on the
Board. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, which would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and determined the policy for the nomination of Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na Na (committee
chairman), Mr. Wang zhixiang and Ms. Feng Jibei.
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
(iy formulating nomination policy, (i) making recommendations
to the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, (iii) reviewing the size, structure, composition and diversity
of the Board, (iv) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and (v) review the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held six meetings during the Year and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors
and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The
attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:
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Number of
meetings
attended

Members RE HESBE XY
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman TR Z - —

(appointed on 9 September 2015) (R=ZF—AHFNANAEZE) 3/3
Mr. Wang zhixiang FEHELEE 2/2
Ms. Feng Jibei IS+

(@ppointed on 16 August 2016) (RZF—NFNA+FNHEZE) 0/0
Mr. Yan Shengxian BB A

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2016) (R=ZF—NF/\A+NHEFHE) 6/6
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMEE

(retired on 18 November 2015) (R=ZF—AHF+—A+/HREE) 3/3
Ms. Tang Qing &L

(resigned with effect from 9 September 2015) (RZFE—AHFNHIHAFEF) 2/2

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
wong Na Na (committee chairman), Mr. Wang Zhixiang and Ms. Feng
Jibei.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
Company's annual report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly
reports, (i) provide advice and comments thereon to the Board and (iii)
review and supervise the Group's financial reporting, internal control
procedures and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year. Two of the
meetings was attended by the Company’s external auditors so that
the members of the Audit Committee could exchange their views and
concerns with the auditors.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s quarterly reports for
the three months and nine months ended 30 September 2015
and 31 March 2016 respectively, interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2015 and the Group's audited annual results
for the year ended 30 June 2016. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of the
Group's financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:
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Number of
meetings
attended

Members KB HEEBRE
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman TR 2+ —

(appointed on 9 September 2015) (RZF—HFNANAEZF) 4/4
Mr. Wang zhixiang FEHELEE 2/2
Ms. Feng Jibei S+

(@ppointed on 16 August 2016) (RZF—NFNA+NHEZE) 0/0
Mr. Yan Shengxian BB A

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2016) (R=ZF—NF/NA+NHEFHE) 3/4
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TREHELEE

(retired on 18 November 2015) (R=ZF—aF+—AF/VHRF) 3/3
Ms. Tang Qing BT

(resigned with effect from 9 September 2015) (RZFE—AHFNHIHFEF) 11
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in 29 March
2012. Any nomination of Directors will be reviewed and assessed
by Nomination Committee for his suitability on the basis of the
background, experience, professional skill, nature of existing positions
held, ability to commit time and effort to carry out his duties and
responsibilities effectively and the diversity of the Board. Suitable
candidates will be recommended by Nomination Committee to the
Board for consideration of appointment. Pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company, any Director appointed to fill vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, and every Director
is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
shall be eligible for re-election at such AGM.

Any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive Director,
who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. Up to
the report date, no independent non-executive Director had been
appointed by the Company for over nine years.

In order to enable the shareholders making an informed decision on
the re-election of Directors, the biographical details demonstrating
qualifications, experience, expertise, leadership and other directorships
held in listed companies of the retiring Directors were set out in the
circular which was dispatched to the Shareholders accompanied with
annual report 2016.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, provide both statutory audit
and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee for statutory
audit for the Group amounts to HK$1,180,000. Non-audit services
include (1) reviewing the interim results, (2) issuing completion
accounts for acquisition matter, (3) tax review during the Year. The total
fee paid by the Group for non-audit services was HK$987,200.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit and
cash flows for the Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis, and have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently, with
applicable disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and
pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements.

The statement issued by the auditor of the Company, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 42 to 43 of
this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for internal control of the
Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate policies
having regard to the objectives of the Group. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has continued to review the effectiveness of the
Group's system of financial and non-financial controls. The system of
internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Controls are monitored by management review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides shareholders with high standards of
disclosure and financial transparency in a timely manner through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars on the GEM website of the Stock Exchange. Such
published documents together with the corporate information
of the Company are also available on the Company’s website
(http://www.silkroadenergy.com.hk).

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the re-
election of Directors.

The chairman of the meeting explained the procedures for conducting
a poll at the beginning of each general meeting of the Company held
during the Year. The results of the poll were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group's operations for the Year
by business activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
46 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2015: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of acquisition of subsidiaries and disposal of subsidiaries during
the Year are set out in notes 37 to 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016 are
set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 49 to 50 of this annual report and in note 33 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2016, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprised the share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounts to HK$658.76 million (2015:
HK$372.16 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the provisions
of its memorandum and articles of association and provided that
immediately following the payment of distributions or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves,
including the share premium account, of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental measures to ensure that the conducting of the
Group’s business meets the applicable local standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection. The Group puts great emphasis
in environmental protection and sustainable development. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in daily operation of
the Group. Such initiatives include recycling of resources and energy
saving measures.

Through the establishment of an ever-improving management system,
enhancement on procedure monitoring, energy conservation and
environment protection were strongly promoted, leading to the
remarkable achievement of environmental management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any material
breach of or noncompliance with the applicable laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance and provident
funds. Share options may also be granted to eligible employees of
the Group. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group has established long term business relationships with its
major suppliers and customers. The Group will endeavor to maintain its
established relationship with these existing suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Da (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou, Francis Bingrong (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 11 March 2016)
Mr. Chen Youhua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hu Zhixiong
(@appointed on 28 August 2015)
Mr. Li Wai Hung
Mr. Liu Baoyu
(@ppointed on 18 May 2016)
Mr. Guo Xiang
(resigned with effect from 18 May 2016)
Mr. Chen Liang
(resigned with effect from 11 March 2016)
Mr. Miao Tianfu
(resigned with effect from 28 August 2015)
Mr. Johnny Huang
(resigned with effect from 28 August 2015)
Mr. An Fengcun
(resigned with effect from 14 August 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Wong Na Na

(appointed on 9 September 2015)
Mr. Wang Zhixiang
Ms. Feng Jibei

(@appointed on 16 August 2016)
Mr. Yan Shengxian

(resigned with effect from 16 August 2016)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

(retired with effect from 18 November 2015)
Ms. Tang Qing

(resigned with effect from 9 September 2015)

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on
pages 18 to 20 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and the
Chief Executives, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the interests of the Directors and the Chief
Executives as disclosed above) in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO; or who was directly or
indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any other members of the Group,
were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the
Company

Nature of interests
EEtE

Name of Shareholders
BEEE, B

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Tai Pu Mining International Co., Ltd. (Note)
REBEBRBEARLE ()

Mr. Hu Zhixiong (Note)
W88 o S A (BT

Held by controlled entity
BEERERES

Beneficial owner
EmEE A

Note: Tai Pu Mining International Co., Ltd is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Hu Zhixiong.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, no other person or
corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) has
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO; or, who was directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company or any other members of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief Executives”) in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules
5.48 10 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by the Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the
Company

Nature of interests
EEME

Name of Shareholders
BRRE®HER

Beneficial owner
Em#EA A

Tai Pu Mining International Co., Ltd. (Note)
FEBEBRBEBRAA (M)

Mr. Hu Zhixiong (Note)
VP 5 2 (O EE)

Held by controlled entity
HmERERFES

Beneficial owner
Em#EA A

Note: Tai Pu Mining International Co., Ltd is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Hu Zhixiong.

BREXHEEENN R_T—R"EA=1H HE
His ALZOEE (EZEREMITHABRINRAR
Az Bt kB R R A RIBRE 75 MR (R DI
3B6IRERRARNR AR X I GIFTTF < B Rz
BEIAR  HERXEEBEAWNEENTRAE
BRTERRBIAEBEAEMKE QR ZER
RE EREZ TAERIRAEES%HIA L2 ke

EERERITHRAERKRMD HERS
REERZERRKXR
RIEB-—RERNA=ZTH BEERARAERT
BA B ([HRITHBAER ) RAR B AR
(E&EBFBAPIESNEREZRAEGRE (1EF
REEARG]) EXVER) Z D - ARRER D R ERERE
BERBESF LB ROIEXVEEET RSN BAME
ARB Rz LR E (BRERIER 7 M
BIEPIBRBIGEXREREFXR SRR 2 EIAX
B HIREE S MR RDI E352R BB RN % IF
XAt B MRz Em AR RIRIBEIER L
RAIESABES6/IEBRERETESFR I ZREAR
HMERRB Rz Eam ORRIT

REQXRAZREESETZEBEBRZHFR

Approximate

Number of  percentage of
shares held shareholding
BERGHEE HBABERESL
1,300,000,000 18.95%
1,300,000,000 18.95%
1,300,000,000 18.95%
1,300,000,000 18.95%
38,400,000 0.56%
38,400,000 0.56%

Mz FEBEERERADNARNEBEBREEEMRIZA
A YHWEEEEREREGHER

Annual Report 2016 35
20165 =R



Report of the Directors
EFERS

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors
and the Chief Executives had any other interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section heading “Directors’” and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” in this report, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the "Continuing Connected Transaction” as
mentioned below, there were no contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were any
other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
between the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Details of share options scheme of the Group are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 28 July 2015,
the name of the Company has been changed from “China Natural
Investment Company Limited” to “Silk Road Energy Services Group
Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name "4 RERARTES &
B AR AR" as the dual foreign name of the Company. The stock
short name for trading in the Share on the Stock Exchange has been
changed to “SILK RD ENERGY" in English and "#: & 82J8" in Chinese
with effect from 31 August 2015. Details of the change of name of the
Company were disclosed in the announcement dated 25 August 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
ITS TERMINATION

On 13 June 2013, C.N. TaiPu (Shenzhen) Investment Company Limited
(the “Tenant”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the tenancy agreement (the “2013 Tenancy Agreement”)
with Mr. Hu Meng (the “Landlord”), for the lease of the premises
(the "Premises”), located at Units 1302-1307, 13/F, Excellence Times
Plaza Building, number 4068 Yitian Road, Futian District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, PRC, for a term of 2 years from 13 June 2013 to
12 June 2015 at a rental of RMB195,186.2 per month and subject to the
increment of 5% in monthly rental in the second year. The Premises is
used as the headquarters in the PRC for the Group.

The annual aggregate amount of rental expenses under the 2013
Tenancy Agreement shall not exceed the annual capacity of
RMB117,112, RMB2,348,090 and RMB2,336,379 for the three years
ending 30 June 2013, 2014 and 2015 respectively. For the year ended
30 June 2015, the Tenant paid rental expenses of approximately
RMB2,336,000 to the Landlord under 2013 Tenancy Agreement.

On 11 June 2015, the Tenant renewed the tenancy agreement (the
“2015 Tenancy Agreement”) with the Landlord in respect of the
leasing of the premises for a term of 1 year from 13 June 2015 to 12
June 2016. The aggregate amount of rental expenses under the 2015
Tenancy Agreement will be RMB3,300,421 for the period from 13 June
2015 to 12 June 2016. For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Tenant
paid rental expenses of approximately RMB165,000 to the Landlord
under 2015 Tenancy Agreement.
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The Landlord is the family member of Mr. Hu Zhixiong (the ultimate
beneficial owner of the substantial shareholder of the Company).
Therefore, the 2013 Tenancy Agreement and 2015 Tenancy Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the Company.
Pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.37, the continuing connected
transactions listed above have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s independent auditor, was
engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transaction
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited has issued a letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed above in accordance with relevant
clauses of Rule 20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules.

On 22 February 2016, the Tenant entered into the termination
agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) with the Landlord to
terminate the 2015 Tenancy Agreement for the leasing of the Premises
with effect from 22 February 2016. Pursuant to the Termination
Agreement,

() The Tenant was discharged from the incomplete leasing rights
and obligations; and

(i) Neither the Landlord nor the Tenant would have any claims
against each other as a result of the termination of the Tenancy
Agreement.
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Report of the Directors
EFEBBRSE

The entering into the Termination Agreement thereby terminating
the 2015 Tenancy Agreement would reduce the rental costs of the
Group as the Group no longer require such a large office space. Since
the Landlord is a connected person of the Company, the Termination
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios relating to
the Termination Agreement less than 5% and the total consideration
less than HK$3,000,000, the Termination Agreement is exempt from
the announcement, reporting and independent Shareholders” approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the Listing Rules.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other non-exempted
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for 81.33% of the total revenue of the Group and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for 20.97% of the
total revenue of the Group. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers combined accounted for 2.65% of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 0.67% of the total purchases for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors, substantial shareholders, and
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any conflicts of interest which had or might
have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” on page 35 of this annual report and “Share-based
Payment Transactions” in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
UNDER RULE 17.50A (1) OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A (1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors since the date of third quarterly report of
the Company for the nine months ended 31 March 2016 are set out
below:

Name of Directors
Mr. Cai Da

Details of Changes

Resigned as an executive director, chairman
and chief executive officer of Chinese Energy
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8009) with
effect from 9 May 2016

Mr. Chen Youhua Resigned as an executive director of Chun
Sing Engineering Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 2277) with effect from 10 June 2016

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.05A (1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 21 to 30 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this report as required under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EFEBBRSE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 43 to the consolidation financial statements.

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Cai Da
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 September 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV VS (IS

feksPie

Shine‘ZOing

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SILK ROAD ENERGY SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Silk Road
Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 44 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
&7 SNEMER &S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony
Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
27 September 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

h O\ 42 2><¢
moBRnREk

For the year ended 30 June 2016
BHE_ZT—RFA=-TALEFE

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET FHET
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue A 6 366,627 328,507
Cost of sales and services rendered S5 R AR AR 75 Ak AR (244,110) (287,801)
Gross profit E A 122,517 40,706
Investment and other income "EREMUA 8 31,373 2,528
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMA (548) (118)
Administrative expenses THEA (50,809) (52,224)
Other operating expenses HfibE8 R (12,491) (10,944)
Amortisation of customer contracts KA 18 (28,202) -
(Loss) gain arising on changes in fair value #H{EEERE QX FEE BT
of held-for-trading investments EAz (FiE) ks (15,756) 7,058
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB R Rz FikaE 39 43 25
Write back of promissory notes issued BB R ETANEE 30 97,877 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FLEF A LFER 2 REE B
customer contracts 18 (95,368) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of i & Y Bt & N B FRIBRER 2
amount due from an associate VEREYEi=! 22 (60,000) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B E MR ERER
property, plant and equipment BIEEE 16 (29,987) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B EMER 2B ERIE
goodwill 17 (6,994) (15,250)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of sz S RE2RE ~ BB
inventories (6,419) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FtE 5 R H W FKIBRER Z
trade and other receivables VEREYEi=! 24 (4,437) (9,119)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FLIEU E FRFER 2 R E B 1B
loan receivables 25 (1,986) (7,648)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FENE R EEERRZ
exploration and evaluation assets WIEEE 19 (1,190) -
Share of results of associates FEIEEE N R EE 22 (82,018) (5,193)
Gain on deemed dilution of investments RAEE BB S N RINE 2 W
in associates 22 15,330 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of gt Al H & E FER 2 RE
available-for-sale investments B 20 - (23,600
Finance costs Bl& B A 9 (13,473) -
Loss before taxation B %1 Bl &S 18 (142,538) (73,779)
Income tax credit (expense) FIsBiEe (FAX) 10 14,233 (2,148)
Loss for the year from REEREFELCEEBZ
continuing operations B8 12 (128,305) (75,927)
Discontinued operation ERIEKEE
Profit for the year from discontinued REFERABRIKEEES 2
operation i A1) 1 - 12,071
Loss for the year KEEREIE (128,305) (63,856)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (continued)

h O\ 42 < e
frofBm*x (#)
For the year ended 30 June 2016
BEZZT—FA=THLEFE

2016 2015
=EB-AF —T-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FEx FET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of  NQ B A AJE(RAEE E18
the Company
— from continuing operations —REFELEES (130,043) (75,927)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEETS - 12,071
Loss for the year attributable to owners of  ZN2Q B #E A A JE(R AN EE E18
the Company (130,043) (63,856)
Profit for the year attributable to FEVE AR e 2 FE G AR F 2 5 A
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations —REFELEER 1,738 -
— from discontinued operation —RECRIEEEET = -
Profit for the year attributable to owners of A BB A JE(h AR F 5% F
the Company 1,738 -
(128,305) (63,856)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 15
From continuing and REBEBELEEFREKLIEL
discontinued operations BT
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) BEARRESE (FRB) (2.16) (1.16)
From continuing operations REFELCEEL
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) BEARREE (FRBW) (2.16) (1.38)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GFOBRNMHEHMhERWNGR

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

2016 2015
=EB-AF —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Loss for the year RFEEEHE (128,305) (63,856)
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMEZERBEX
for the year
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently HEgrEF EEBR2HE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEBINEFEECELERR
foreign operations (26,354) (8,583)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, AEREEMEEMS  MERMAEH
net of income tax (26,354) (8,583)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEEHEBREZ (154,659) (72,439)
Total comprehensive (expense) income LWTATEEAFE2EA (FAX)
for the year attributable to: W -
- Owners of the Company —ARBHEBA (156,397) (72,439)
— Non-controlling interests — IR ER 1,738 -
(154,659) (72,439)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EROEFSIAIR R

As at 30 June 2016
R-F—R"FANA=+H

2016 2015
— R —ET—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e FET FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 B MR 16 46,311 43,704
Goodwill (RS 17 18,776 24,313
Customer contracts BEAH 18 197,221 -
Exploration and evaluation assets BR R E B E 19 - 1,229
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 20 = -
Other non-current assets HiERe&EE 21 - 76,000
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEEE 31 11,293 -
Investments in associates P AN - = 22 415 279,103
274,016 424,349
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 23 4,242 8,570
Trade, bills and H SR  EINEE R
other receivables H b JE W IR 24 215,725 24,027
Loan receivables JEUE K 25 117,279 103,433
Amounts due from associates JE IR Bt 2 X B FRIR 22 121,868 -
Held-for-trading investments H’Ei'a’i?é&é 26 69,621 19,213
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEY 27 216,093 100,878
744,828 256,121
Current liabilities mEAEE
Trade and other payables 25 R EHMER KT 28 90,882 8,279
Amount due to a director BN —REEFRIA 29 1,128 -
Income tax payables FETFR1S TR 13,276 3,032
105,286 11,311
Net current assets mEEEFE 639,542 244,810
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBAR 913,558 669,159
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE
Promissory notes A ER 30 145,278 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 31 50,951 4,026
196,229 4,026
Net assets BEFE 717,329 665,133
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continved)
OUFRINRR (&)

As at 30 June 2016
W= <ERA=TA

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FEx FHET
Capital and reserves BEARRFE

Share capital A& A 32 342,938 290,625
Reserves & 363,870 374,508

Equity attributable to owners of RARIHA NEG#ER
the Company 706,808 665,133
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 2 10,521 -
Total equity R A 717,329 665,133

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 179 were BEEE@R _ZE—NFNA-+HHRERKESL
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27  E179B 2 A B KRR 2 TIE  WHIATALTRR

September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: ®5E:
Mr. Cai Da - Director Mr. Chen Youhua - Director
BERE-FE RRESXE-ES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO EmEER

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_T—RERA=ZTHLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREEAR AER
Foreign
currency Unlisted
translation warrants
Share Share reserve Reserve  Accumulated
capital premium (note i) (note ii) losses Total
LM
INEBRE R iEE
B BEE B (D) RE () 2itEE A&t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL AL TAL THL TAL
At 1July 2014 R-ZE—NE+A—H 259,625 373,745 7122 - (67,620) 572,872
Loss for the year FEEBE - - - - (63,856) (63,856)
Other comprehensive expense  FREM2EFH S
for the year - - (8,583) - - (8,583)
Total comprehensive expense FAZHBHRY
for the year - - (8,583) - (63,856) (72,439)
Issue of unlisted warrants BT L RIRAEE - - - 10,000 - 10,000
Unlisted warrants issue expenses 3 L JJH;JE BRI Faﬁ ﬁ - - - (300) - (300)
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T 3 R AR HEE
unlisted warrants Bl 31,000 130,014 - (6,014) - 155,000
At 30 June 2015 R-ZE-—AF~A=1H 290,625 503,759 (1,461) 3,686 (131,476) 665,133
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continved)

nﬂ' O '

REEE ()

For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE-Z—XFA=THLEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARERAER
Foreign
currency  Unlisted
translation ~ warrants Other Non-
Share Share reserve Reserve reserve Accumulated controlling
capital  premium (note i) (notei)  (note iii) losses Total interests Total
¥
NERE  ARER bRk
Ba  ROBE &N fEE R (6 2SES Rt FERER &
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fhx THx FhEx T FhEx Ti#n FHEx Tign FHER
At1July 2015 R-Z-n%+A-H 290,625 503,759 (1,461) 3,686 - (131,476) 665,133 - 665,133
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - (130,043) (130,043 1,738 (128,305)
Other comprehensive expense FREMZERR
for the year - = (26,354) = = - (26,354) - (26,354)
Total comprehensive expense FNREAHY
for the year - - (26,354) - - (130,043) (156,397) 1,738 (154,659)
Lapse of unlisted warrants FETRAREERN = - - (3,686) - 3,686 - - -
Additional non-controlling interests &% & — R B A RIS
arising on partial disposal of EEBNEERER
a subsidiary (Note 39) (Fi1339) - - - - (3,383) - (3,383) 16,383 13,000
Dividend paid to non-controlling B RER R S
interests (note v) (Biziv) - - - - - - - (7,600) (7,600)
Issue of new shares by way of placing ~ MAEL& A BT I D 52,313 151,708 - - - - 204,021 - 204,021
Share issue expenses RIAEITHER = (2,566) - = = - (2,566) - (2,566)
At 30 June 2016 RZZ-"EXA=tH 342,938 652,901 (27,815) - (3,383) (257,833) 706,808 10,521 717,329
Notes: B2k

iii)

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group's
foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Such
exchange difference accumulated in the foreign currency translations reserve will
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operations.

The unlisted warrants reserve relates to unlisted warrants issued to independent
third parties during 2015, representing the proceeds received from the issue less
direct expenses. Further information about the unlisted warrants is set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve relates to the difference between the (i) fair value of consideration
received by the Group and (i) the aggregate of the increase in non-controlling
interest upon the partial disposal of PR ASIA Investment Holdings Limited (“PR ASIA
Investment”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Further information
about the partial disposal is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 16 March 2016 and 8 April 2016, interim dividends of HK$6,000,000 and
HK$1,600,000 respectively were declared and paid by PR ASIA Investment to its
non-controlling shareholder.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mOIREMER

For the year ended 30 June 2016

BEZZT—FA=THLEFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FHExT FET
(Restated)
(reE3)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before taxation bR AT E 1B (142,538) (61,708)
Adjustments for: FEEES
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R F BWA (87) (201)
Other interest income H A A S WA (661) -
Finance costs A& pK AR 13,473 -
Depreciation of property, Y- B MEETE
plant and equipment 9,573 3,949
Amortisation of customer contracts EPA A 28,202 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR 2 W 39 (43) (13,472)
Share of results of associates JEIEEE NRIRE 82,018 5,193
Gain on deemed dilution of BIEMEHE NRIRE 2
investments in associates i (15,330) -
Loss (gain) arising on change in RHIEEEREQTE
fair value of held-for-trading FE)EE 2 FE
investments (Yrzs) 15,756 (7,058)
Script dividend income from BIEEBERE 2
held-for-trading investments A& 1 B A (16,409) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  HE&
plant and equipment L EEE 3,315 146
Write back of promissory notes BE S TR LER
issued (97,877) -
Impairment loss recognised in MEP A NMER
respect of customer contract (B 18 \ 95,368 -
Impairment loss recognised LB UK B & N R B RER
in respect of amounts due < BIEEE
from associates 60,000 -
Impairment loss recognised MY BFE KR EER
in respect of property, plant and 2 BEEE
equipment 29,987 -
Impairment loss recognised IHERRZREEE
in respect of goodwill 6,994 15,250
Impairment loss recognised SEEER Y HEEE
in respect of inventories B 6,419 -
Impairment loss recognised BB F R H A EUGRIR
in respect of trade and R IBEEE
other receivables 4,437 9,119
Impairment loss recognised Efﬁf W B SRRER
in respect of loan receivables REEE 1,986 7,648
Impairment loss recognised wm& A E
in respect of exploration and RBEEE
evaluation assets 1,190 -
Impairment loss recognised MAEEERE®R
in respect of available-for-sale ZOBERE
investments - 23,600
Operating cash flows before KBRS EBY
movements in working capital KSR RE 85,773 (17,534)
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,091) (194)
(Increase) decrease in trade, bills and B2 EWFIA  EIREE K&
other receivables EI@FE%ZW\IE (420n) m (80,605) 23,055
Increase in loan receivables JE Y B SR8 N (15,832) (77,425)
(Increase) decrease in held-for-trading BIEEE 2E (4E) R/
investments (49,755) 845
Decrease in trade and other payables g 5 I H A JE A 5RIE R (15,022) (609)
Cash used in operations LETEMARE (77,532) (71,862)

Annual Report 2016

201655



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mOIRERNER (#)

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHET FHET
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K EED
Cash used in operations KEEESMAR S (77,532) (71,862)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEANEH (1,164) (374)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BN EREE (18,237) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ #& & E Bh T IR & %58 (96,933) (72,236)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES "EEE
Acquisition of property, WM B MR
plant and equipment (24,193) (568)
Loan to a third party ME=ZFREER (17,988) -
Increase in amounts due from JiE Ui Bt /5 X B FRIELE AN
associates (368) -
Net cash (outflow) inflow HEMBARIZEE ORE)
on disposal of subsidiaries MAFRE 39 (8) 14,977
Dividend received from associates BN, 30,500 -
Repayment of loan to a third party ME=ZFEEER 17,988 -
Net cash inflow from acquisition of =1 =PNETv
subsidiaries WEMAFRE 37 1,232 -
Interest received B U F B 748 2071
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEMEE
plant and equipment F1S 3IE 16 56
Deposit paid in respect of acquisition of FWE—FBEEAREN
a target company 2D - (68,000)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) WEEEME (TR RS FE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7,927 (53,334)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Proceeds from issue of new shares AR5 REITH R D Z A
by way of placing 1S3 204,021 -
Net cash inflow on partial disposal of o HERME AR R
interests in subsidiaries HWeRAFE 38 13,000 -
Increase in amount due to a director e —REEFIAEM 1,128 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BRI R
interests (7,600) -
Share issue expenses TR (2,566) -
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRTEE (694) -
Interest paid BAFE (13) -
Proceeds from issue of new shares TT{EIE LT R HE BB 21T
upon exercise of unlisted warrants %D 2 TS 3R - 155,000
Proceeds from issue of unlisted BITIEETRREEZ
warrants Fri§ a8 - 10,000
Unlisted warrants issue expenses JEETRREREITHAS - (300)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ~ REEEBNFISIR & /5458
ACTIVITIES 207,276 164,700
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (coninueq)

mBIREMER (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHET FHET
(Restated)
(sEEH)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HWe MR EEBYILINFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 118,270 39,130
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FYNIRERBEEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 100,878 62,025
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE &R EH) a2
RATE CHANGES (3,055) ©277)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRNAEEREEEY
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank LASRITHEE SR RIB & KRR
balances and cash 216,093 100,878

Annual Report 2016

201655



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO TR R R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

1.

GENERAL

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. Each entity in the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)")

The Group has consistently adopted the HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"), amendments and
Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") which are effective
for the Group's financial year beginning on 1 July 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘l

BRI ¥R & biT 5T

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

2,

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRSS

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 15

a s W N o

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative'

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’
Clarification to HKFRS 15°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective date not yet been determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and included the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2,

FERAMEREER]ERMBREER
(TEBMBRERER]) (&)

B F8 A B 1o R A 2 #8 R ARE R] B R M 8]
EER (F)

BEBUBHREEREIN (—F—HF)EMT
" (#&)

BEMBEREERNESR (—T-—MOF)2EE
M :

o BBGERIEIREMTA R LA
ERENMECHERTRMERE  ERAH
AR A FEE RBME  SLAE
BEABAKBRENRERER/ENLZ
EBRERGHOREREMABE/IMAAR
ERREERNEZFEZEHRE —
R BLIR & 5t HA M 45 R B DASE SH A ANET
E-RENARKKREEHNESRE R
ELMEBECEBRATRHEZERT
B UREREEZSNEGRRSREE
BHELZHREREAR/INEIE R
HABEERNEZHE2EHTA  HAF
Erf ARt EmRas 2 AFTE - BHE
EHRE MR ARERERBER
BHZ R FER 8 - M RIBFBUH R
HHERAEE (T —WF)  BRA{FH
TRIREZEE  UREM2EKRER
BAKRE (LIHFEEEE) A FEZHE
B2 EEREBMAZENBEMER -

Annual Report 2016
20165 =R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= /A f
N

By 5 ¥ 2= B 5

For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE_T—
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAMEREEITERMBREER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact on
the financial performance resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9. So far it has concluded that the adoption of HKFRS 9 may have
an impact on the Group's results and financial position, including
the classification and measurement of financial assets. For
instance, the Group will be required to replace the incurred loss
impairment model in HKAS 39 with the expected loss impairment
model that will apply to various exposures to credit risk. Until a
detailed review of the impact of adopting HKFRS 9 is performed,
the Group cannot provide a reasonable estimate that quantifies
the impact on this financial statements nor can it yet conclude
whether that impact will be significant or not.
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

) Identify the contract with the customer;
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
iiiy  Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the timing of the
revenue recognition may be affected by the new standard, and
more disclosures relating to revenue is required. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until detailed review have been completed.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees. In respect of the lessee
accounting, the standard introduces a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases with the lease term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee.

A lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16. Since the Group enters into lease arrangements with
average lease term from one to three years, the Group may be
required to recognise the right-of-use asset and lease liability in
the future. The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial statements
of these requirements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.
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2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it
is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement
in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the
fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market
for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government
bond rates must be used.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes to
the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere in
the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report. The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. If users do not have access to the other information
in this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation
methods for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption
can be rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue,

i) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group uses straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible
assets, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
and associate. An investing entity is required to recognise the
gain or loss arising from selling or contributing assets that
constitutes or contains a business to a joint venture or associate
in full. An investing entity is required to recognise the gain or
loss arising from selling or contributing assets that does not
constitute or contain a business to a joint venture or associate
only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that
joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
has not yet been determined. However, earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 in the future may have a
material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made
in the Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where
and in what order information is presented in the financial
statements. Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into
consideration all relevant facts and circumstances, how it
aggregates information in the financial statements, which include
the notes. An entity does not require to provide a specific
disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information resulting from
that disclosure is not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS
contain a list of specific requirements or describe them as
minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when
their presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity's
financial position and financial performance respectively. Entities,
in which they have investments in associates or joint ventures,
are required to present the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method, separated into the share of items that (i)
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i)
will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

() an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes; and

(i significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material impact
on the disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendments will
become effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of Amendments to HKAS 7 in the future may have
a material impact on the disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with customers

The amendments aim to clarify (i) when a promised good or
service is separately identifiable from other promises in a
contract (i.e. distinct within the context of the contract); (i) how
to apply the principal versus agent application; (iii) for a licence of
intellectual property (“IP") when an entity’s activities significantly
affect the IP to which the customer has rights; (iv) clarify the
scope of exception for sale-based and usage-based royalties
related to licences of IP. The amendments also add two practical
expedients to the transition requirements of HKFRS 15.

The amendments to HKFRS 15 do not change the effective date
of HKFRS 15 and therefore will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early application of the
amendments to HKFRS 15 together with HKFRS 15 continue to be
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of amendments to HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact
on the timing of the revenue recognition may be affected by
the new standard, and more disclosures relating to revenue is
required. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of amendments to HKFRS 15 until detailed
review have been completed.

68 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

HIRRERIRIE EE AR QA

FERAMEREE]ERMBRELER
(TEBMBREER]) (&)

B F8 A B 1o R A 2 #8 RS R] B R M 8]
EERQ (F)

BB BHEERIF 15K 2 1E55] X EER B
EERFISHEXEREFEXHRAZEE

ZEERAEIR ()2 K E E 3 IR 75 {7 By 7] £2
BHREMEHEEMRIIRBH 2 HER (B
EEHOATLAMRED) (MM EAREA
Eal (IMNERESBREFETFHRARENZ
A ERE ([NBER] R ZMNEERTA
(VASHERE M AR REE Z B EE A&
ZPISNERBE - ZFERT AT R BERE
ERIZE155% < BEHR B REMABR AT 2E
HIEe

EEMBRELENESRZEITALITER
BB EERE R 2 AR A H - Bt #
R-T—N\F—A—BRZEFMIE 2 FEHHE
R -EBERFIRFRAEBM GRS LERISE
1555 Z A& R] A B[R B 78 B 755 ¥R o5 2B R 561557

ARFEEHES A% EAE BN BHREER
B159 2 55T A @ W TR 2 BRI EE A
pE MARNE S BEKEY BE- AT
EAREEEITHARMA REEH GRS
BISEI5%2 6 2T A 2 BRI A B HEE R A
GE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e bt e

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's returns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through:
(i) a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (i) the Group's
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

3.

FESTHE
BANBRRDREEEEHAAGBENE
B BHEEBER I GARERED
BB A R 5 AR A A A ZR £
(TRIZAR_E TR B ) R 2 A 1 7 A
MBI -

BETERIARAFESEIN KEVBR
R IVRIBIE L AR MR

B SRR — AR R AR BRI S R R BRI AT 18
B2 AF(E S

RFEARFTERYPERK TR TH528E
ZEE—EER (KEEN) MHETEKRF
RHHEEERERABRAER XN 2B
1% (BIFRER)  TH%EREEERAUER
SEMAR - AEERMGET - ERATEFE
HMFBER T XS et RN E-

ITE2EABERIIANT -

RERBEEE

REMBRREBEARTD NI ARAZFHNE
B (BNEME LRI B RE -

REBRATER NESEHIRE : () EEH
BREHR: (W2EREHRADMFFBE
Wi FAAFERER : R (i)se5E MELIRE
HRNBNZERAEENLREE - HWAEE
RIREHSRNRERDNFE ATEEMER
AEELBR EB NI AREREHRDN
B (VEEMRERA AR LA (i)
KEEMBNLTRRERN : (DAKEARTRE
REGERRE  R(VERE L gE-

Annual Report 2016
20165 =R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RO TR R R M EE

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary:.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost,
(i) derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost (including any components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs incurred to effect a business combination are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business
combination are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes,

. assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits,

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions
with the share-based payment transactions of the Group
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for
non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured either at fair
value or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration that is within the scope
of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each reporting date,
and changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with HKAS 39. Other contingent consideration that is
not within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are recognised in profit
or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
Under the equity method, interests in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The Group's share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the associates
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, which determined using the equity method together
with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate is
recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether it
iS necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to its investment in the associate. Goodwill that forms
part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is
reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity method,
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if
that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated financial
statements to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The Group’s share in the associate’s gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services rendered in
the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods,

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 10ss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs and termination benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or l0ss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—A"FA=THLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
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3.

—ANERA=TBILEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or 10ss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losse. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include
topographical and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities in relation to commercial
and technical feasibility studies, and expenditure incurred to
secure further mineralisation in existing one bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure incurred prior to
acquiring legal rights to explore an area is written off as incurred.
When it can be reasonably ascertained that a mining property is
capable of commercial production, exploration and evaluation
costs are transferred to mining rights and are amortised
based on the total proven and probable reserves of the mine
or contractual period from the date of commencement of
commercial production which approximates the date from which
they are available for use. If any project is abandoned during the
evaluation stage, the total expenditure thereon will be written off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continuead)
Financial assets

The Group’'s financial assets are classified into one of the
following categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any change
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is included in the investment
and other income line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 36.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated investments in unlisted
equity securities as available-for-sale financial assets on initial
recognition of those items.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

86 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

HIRRERIRE EE AR QA

FTESTHBE (&)

SRWMIA (&)

eHEE (&)

B IR IE A TFEARZS 2 HEE (B)
MemEER TIER NBRRSFRHEESR:

TZRRTAGRHEMBA 2

o RNUISHERE BRASEAHERZD
AR T AES &y RIEHHERE
FRAE ERIR L 2

o BRRBEEZTETR WAERFR
PN

RIBERREATEARZEREEDRATFE
JIfR MEBFABELEZERAFEESNE
ER BB E RN B ER - N B R 2 W
BB FETERNEHMEERNZ AL
HH B UEF AR BERANKE MEMIK
AT e R EIZMI FE36FT LAY 75 SUEEE ©

AR EEMEE

At ESREERS D /AR E ZITE
TH I TBREEZREATFEARZ SR
BE BERRERFIE IFEEIHzREZ
FHEVTET R - AEER V)RR IE L RAE
FRENEEAHERARAHLESREE-

WEERERTSHRELEAFEEESEAEL
A ERARE AR EEAR AR Z
ABEBRAREFEREZNTETAREREHR
WRARER D #A 2R EERE (R TX
ERTREEREEBERZETHR) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I‘l

m & B 155 ¥ 2= Bid 51

For the year ended 30 June 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade, bills and other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from associates and cash and cash equivalents)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment l0ss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment 10ss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade, bills and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period from
30 to 60 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade, bills and other receivables and loan receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade, bills and
other receivable or loan receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and 10ss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment l0ss on financial assets (Continuead)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment 10ss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to a director and promissory notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form as
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retain interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in reserves is recognised in profit or 10ss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives (other than goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group's leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories and value in
use of goodwill, property, plant and equipment, exploration
and evaluation assets and customer contracts for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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HEZT
4,

—RNERAZTRLEEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
Statements.

ownership of buildings

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase consideration as
detailed in note 16, formal titles of certain of the Group's rights to
the use of the buildings were not yet granted from the relevant
government authorities. Despite the fact that the Group has not
obtained the relevant legal title, the directors of the Company
determine to recognise these land and buildings on the ground
that they expect the legal titles being obtained in the future
should have no major difficulties and the Group is in substance
controlling these buildings. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the absence of formal title to these buildings does not
impair the value of the relevant assets to the Group.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the ageing analysis
of inventories at the end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are
no longer suitable for use. The Group makes an allowance for
inventories based on the assessment of net realisable value. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount
of inventories of the Group was approximately HK$4,242,000
(2015: approximately: HK$8,570,000). An impairment loss of
approximately HK$6,419,000 (2015: Nil) has been recognised
during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
June 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$18,776,000 (2015: HK$24,313,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$31,024,000 (2015:
HK$24,213,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in note 17.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, customer
contracts and exploration and evaluation assets

Determining whether property, plant and equipment, customer
contracts and exploration and evaluation assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts of those
assets determined based on the higher of their fair values less
costs of disposal and their value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculation is prepared on the basis of management's
assumptions and estimates taking into account the existing
business expansion plan going forward, the current sales orders
on hand and other strategic new business development. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment are approximately HK$46,311,000 (2015:
HK$43,704,000). An impairment loss of approximately
HK$29,987,000 (2015: Nil) has been recognised during the year
ended 30 June 2016.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amounts of customer contracts
are approximately HK$197,221,000 (2015: Nil). An impairment loss
of approximately HK$95,368,000 (2015: Nil) has been recognised
during the year ended 30 June 2016.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amounts of exploration and
evaluation assets are nil (2015: HK$1,229,000). An impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,190,000 (2015: Nil) has been
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade, bills and other receivables and loan
receivables

The Group makes impairment loss based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade, bills and other receivables
and loan receivables. Allowances are applied to trade, bills
and other receivables and loan receivables where events or
change in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. In determining whether
impairment loss on receivables is required, the Group takes into
consideration the current creditworthiness, the past collection
history, age status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance
is only made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected
and is recognised on the difference between the estimated
future cash flow expected to receive discounted using the
original effective interest rate and its carrying value. If the
financial conditions of the counterparties of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is approximately HK$141,052,000 (2015: approximately
HK$8,261,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$8,079,000 (2015: approximately HK$9,119,000).

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of bills receivables is
approximately HK$31,167,000 (2015: Nil). No impairment was
recognised on bills receivables during both years.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of other receivables
is approximately HK$43,506,000 (2015: HK$15,766,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$2,335,000
(2015: Nil).

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of loan receivables is
approximately HK$117,279,000 (2015: HK$103,433,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$9,634,000
(2015: HK$7,648,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of amounts due from associates

The policy for impairment loss in respect of amounts due
from associates of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of impairment loss is measured at the difference between the
carrying amount of the amounts due from associates and the
associates’ net equities. If the amount of the net equities is
negative, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of amounts due from
associates is approximately HK$121,868,000 (2015: Nil), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HK$60,000,000
(2015: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes trade and other payables, amount due to a director and
promissory notes net of cash and cash equivalents) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued share
capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider that, following the acquisition of the Everbest Return
Group, gearing ratio is not an appropriate measure of the capital
structure of the Group. The directors of the Company instead
review the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.
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6. REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue represents revenue arising on sale of goods and WABNHE S MR ERBAEEZ WA (B
services rendered, net of sales related taxes, where applicable. MBEERBEHRE WEA) - AEEREFHE
An analysis of the Group's revenue from continuing operations is KRB 2 WADITT
as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Provision of coal mine construction REFEBEEZ TR EWRER N
engineering, mechanical equipment Ko B R A B TR BT 1 AR S
installation and coal production and
technical services 298,741 -
Provision of advertising and REES R ABERE
public relations services 41,212 39,960
Trading of other mineral products BEEHEMEE SR 12,948 274,268
Interest income from money WEZEB 2 FEHA
lending business 12,415 5,920
Processing and trading of fluorite products MT BN B & & A E @ 1,311 8,359
366,627 328,507
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The directors
of the Company have chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

° Coal mining services — Provision of coal mine construction
engineering, mechanical equipment installation and coal
production and technical services

. Advertising and public relations — Provision of advertising
and public relations services

. Fluorite products — Processing and trading of fluorite
products

o Other mineral products — Trading of other mineral products

° Money lending — Provision of money lending services in
Hong Kong

Under HKFRS 8, an additional reportable segment under coal
mining services was identified during the year. The segment
information reported on the next pages does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operation, which are described in
more detail in note 11.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment revenues and results

7.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenues and results

By 5 ¥ 2= B 5

by reportable and operating segments.

Continuing operations

7. DEER#)
DEBARER

B2

Segment revenues

AT RAEEIZA 2R LEED B2 WARE

Segment results

BERSEER FERA PEER
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RFE —E-hRF ZEB-RFE —T—h#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET FHET
Coal mining services BB R BR S 298,741 - (50,706) -
Advertising and public relations BERAH 41,212 39,960 13,159 16,569
Other mineral products HiBEER 12,948 274,268 (7,218) (5,453)
Money lending HfE 12,415 5920 9,610 (1,728)
Fluorite products HAEM 1,311 8,359 (50,119) (37,194)
Total for continuing operations FEEEXBBE 366,627 328,507 (85,274) (27,806)
Share of results of associates iy AN (82,018) (5,193)
Gain on deemed dilution of WHREEE-—HERAREL
investments in associates Wezx 15,330 -
Investment and other income REREMBA 31,373 2,513
(Loss) gain arising on change in BEEERERTEZEM
fair value of held-for-trading EEZ (BB K&
investments (15,756) 7,058
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B DB E 43 25
Impairment loss recognised in B EERERR
respect of available-for-sale wEFE
investments - (23,600)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  BEIEUEE & D BIFBTEZ 2
amounts due from associates AEEE (60,000) -
Write back of promissory notes issued B E{TERR EEEE 97,877 -
Finance costs SRR (13,473) -
Central administrative costs HRRITHRAX (30,640) (26,776)
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (FELEEE)
(continuing operations) (142,538) (73,779)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the profit (loss) incurred by each segment
without allocation of share of results of associates, gain on
deemed dilution of investments in associates, certain investment
and other income, (loss) gain arising on change in fair value of
held-for-trading investments, net gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
impairment 10ss recognised in respect of available-for-sale
investments, impairment loss recognised in respect of amounts
due from associates, write back of promissory notes issued,
certain finance costs and central administrative costs. This is
the measure reported to the directors of the Company for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. oEER#E)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities RAEBREESREIZAEBEERBRE
by reportable and operating segment. DT ©
2016 2015
—E—E —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Segment assets PEEE
Continuing operations FFEAEEY
Coal mining service B xR RS 425,926 -
Advertising and public relations =y SN 24,945 27,616
Other mineral products H R E @ 4,378 5,532
Money lending HE 117,280 103,433
Fluorite products A E 12,471 65,973
Total segment assets BOKEEE 585,000 202,554
Assets relating to discontinued operation ~ AR IMEEEK 2 EE - 1,000
Unallocated vl 433,844 476,916
Consolidated assets REBE 1,018,844 680,470
Segment liabilities PEAEE
Continuing operations FFEAEEY
Coal mining service B xR RS 81,054 -
Advertising and public relations =SSN 1,675 1,816
Other mineral products H {th i & Gn 1,294 307
Money lending W& 111 20
Fluorite products & A EE 4,024 4,434
Total segment liabilities ‘orEBaE 88,158 6,577
Unallocated E vl 213,357 8,760
Consolidated liabilities mEAaE 301,515 15,337
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
unallocated assets (mainly comprising deferred tax assets,
interests in associates, available-for-sale investments,
held-for-trading investments and certain other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents). Goodwill is allocated to
segments as described in note 17; and

- All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated liabilities (mainly comprising deferred
tax liabilities, income tax payables, promissory notes and
certain other payables).

N

DEER (&)
PTHEEREE (£)
BERSBRBEEOESBEEZER:

— BRIREE (FERRBECHEELEE-
REEENR 2w Al HEERE H1E
BEEREMETHEMERFERRS R
REZEBM)IN FIBEEHYNETAZ
WO -BEESEZMEI7F D
Bk

- BRIEAE (XT2EFBEEHEEE:
FERTPRISHE - AL RIB M A T EMER R
RN FBRBEONETREDE-
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7.

SRR &b EE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

TEER (&)

Other segment information Hftt o HEHR
continuing operations FFEAEET
Advertising and Other mineral
Coal mining service public relations products Money lending Fluorite products Unallocated Total
RRFERRE RERDE AtBEER BE BRER FAR @it
2016 215 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 215 2016 2015
Z2-XF -T-1fF -%-XF -T-1F -8-XEF -T-1F Z8-xE -T-1F -B-x§ -T-1F -B-XF -T-1fF ZB-Xf -T-1%
HKS'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn Fian TR R TER TR TR TiEn TR TR TiEn Fian
Amounts included in the FRABEEDIR
measure of segment profit ~ EEGEZEE
or loss or segment assets
Depreciation of property, nE BERABNE
plant and equipment 6,292 - 444 751 463 6%9 - - 2,285 2201 89 8 9,573 3731
Addition to non-current assets
(note) 389,889 - 9% 357 42 75 5 2 5833 108 = 68026 395,863 68,568
Loss on clisposal of property, LENE BRERRESE
plant and equipment 233 o - 1 2,399 - - B 683 145 - o 3315 146
Amortisation of customer contracts %ﬁ“ﬂ%tﬁ 28,202 - - - - - - - - - - - 28,202 -
Impairment loss recognised BRERR
in respect of property; Emﬁ EE 2
plant and equipment = - = - = - = - 29,987 - = - 29,987 -
Impairment loss recognised AERRRZANERR
in respect of goodwil - - - - - - - - 6,994 15250 - - 6,994 15,250
Impairment loss recognised EfEsgGE
in respect of trade and other ALREER
receivables 3401 - 1,036 - - - - - - 9,119 - - 4,437 9,119
Impairment loss recognised HENERED
in respect of loan receivables HEEE - - - - - - 1,986 7648 - - - - 1,986 7648
Impairment loss recognised HFERRZAEER
inrespect of inventories = - = - = - = - 6,419 - = - 6,419 -
Impairment loss recognised in -~ BEVRRAMEEERR L
respect of exploration and HEER
evaluation assets = - = - = - = - 1,190 - = - 1,190 -
Impairment loss recognisedin -~ EEFPALEZ 2 AERE
respect of customer contracts 95,368 - - - - - - - - - - - 95368 -
Amounts regularly provided to EHHEREBREE
the chief operating decision ~ RHEFHRAREE
maker but not included in the S5 B&EHEZEH
measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets
Interest in associates - - - = - - - B - - 415 219,103 415 219103
Impairment of available-for-sale
investments - - - - = - = - - - - 23,600 - 23,600
Bank interest income (52) - - - (30) - - - - - (5) (201 (87) (200
Other interest income (661) - - - - - - - = - = - (661) -
Income tax expense (credit) (13,099) - 1,880 2500 1 3 242 16 (3,267) (378) - 33 (14,233) 2148
Share of results of associates - - - - - - - - - - 82,018 5193 82,018 5193
(Gain on deemed dilution of
investments in assoclates - - - - - - - - = - (15,330) - (15330) -
Finance costs BBRE 275 - - - - - - - - - 13,198 - 13413 -
Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued operations and M FRPEETEEZSFAWERELEXBATE

excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the Peoples

Republic of China (“PRC") and Mongolia.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external
customers is presented based on the location of the operation.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographical locations of the assets.

Hong Kong
i
2016 2015
—B-AE C—E-1f
HK$'000 HKS'000
THT THL
Segment revenues ix-'ON
Revenue from external PERSENST: ol ON
customers 53,627 45,880
Non-current assets (note) ERBEE (M) 17,751 372,890

DEER (&)

i & & H

AREBZEENDMNRES PEARLFE
(PR R
REEFECLEEBRREMETEZHATY

BREHRES - ARAKEERBEEZE
B EEMEEZRS) -

Elsewhere in the PRC

FEEHHE
2016 2015
“®-AF -F-0F
HK$'000 HKS'000
THET FhHL
311,689 274,268
238,767 2,995

Mongolia
EE

2016 2015
= i
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAL
1,311 8359
6,205 48,464

Consolidated

B4
2016 2015
Z§-A% 3-5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEE AT

366,627 328,507

262,723 424,349

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

M ERDEETEREERMTARELEHBAEE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. 2EEM®
Information about major customers ERIEEFESN
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years EHRBAREBBIKAI0%Z REEZP Z AR
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as HEFRENT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Customer A EPA 76,897 N/A? 73 A2
Customer B! X B 70,688 N/A? 73 A2
Customer C’ EHC 69,173 N/A? 73 A2
Customer D' EFD 60,438 N/A? 73 A2
Customer E2 BFE? N/A3 T 3 124,426
Customer F? BFEF N/A3 T 3 50,739
Customer G2 BFEG? N/A3 T 3 48,077
Customer H? BFEH N/A3 T 3 48,039
1 Revenue from coal mining services segment ’ R EBEERERBE S EZ WA
2 Revenue from other mineral products segment 2 KEEMEERDEZ KA
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% or more to the 3 BRI AW ARSEEEE T EEARE
Group's revenue from the continuing operations in the respective year U7 A 10%3k A -
8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8. RKRERHMWKA
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BELSEER
Interest income on bank deposits |ITERFBEHBA 87 201
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading PERFEEERE 2 e
investments 13,694 1,725
Script dividend income BIEEBERE Z AR EHA
from held-for-trading investments 16,409 -
Other interest income (note) HaF 2 A (k) 661 -
Sundry income MIBUWA 522 602
31,373 2,528
Note: Other interest income represented interest income received from an Wer: EMFl B MAERETSBARB ([ARK])
independent third party for a loan principal of Renminbi (‘RMB") 15,000,000. 15,000,00070 > B2 @B 5 = HUEE FI B UL A o
The loan was unsecured, bore fixed interest of 5% per annum and repayable S B IR R E R R A% 8 R —

within a year. The loan was fully recovered during the year. IR D R R E B E o
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BEMKE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITEEFNBHAX 13 -
Interest expenses on discounted bills AMEEBAEMAX 262 -
Imputed interest on promissory notes EAERBHERNE
(note 30) (B$7¥30) 13,198 -
13,473 -
10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 10. FrfE% (R
2016 2015
—EB-RF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Current tax: o EITIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 2,122 2,556
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RIS 18,990 3
21,112 2,559
Deferred tax (note 31): EEFTE (MIEE31) -
Current year KFEE (35,345) @11
(14,233) 2,148
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HEZZ—ARFA=THLFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

()  Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

(i) Subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years.

(i) Profits of the subsidiaries established in Mongolia are
subject to Mongolian Economic Entity Income Tax (“EEIT”).
Under the Law of Mongolia on EEIT (the “EEIT Law"), the tax
rate of the Mongolian subsidiary was 10% for both years.

(iv) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax (credit) expenses for the year can be reconciled

10. Fi8

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

BER)RAX (&)

EBFEBRIDEMEFEE 2 (AT EER
M Z16.5%5T & -

R B 2 B /2 A L 7
91259%H) R B4 9 Bt

RERE R M8 R B AR i KA
BARLREERAENR ([KEERM
BHl) - REFXLGZEEBEERMERE
BITREBREAEIOEN])  REHE
R ZPTBBRR M R 310%

Hbt A AL 2 BB REEHA
HEEZ RITH RN E

AEFZHRER (B xRz aEaRz

to the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of BRERIEE CHENT
profit or loss as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loss before taxation BREIATE R CREFELCEER)
(from continuing operations) (142,538) (73,779)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% 12 & & FI15 5 & 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) ZE—RF:165%)FTERNFIE (23,519) (12,174)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARHBANT KT E
for tax purpose (21,403) (1,191)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR HO B2
for tax purpose 17,112 9,372
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTBBEEROTB L 3,317 4,397
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised EAARER G ERE (186) -
Tax effect of share of results of associates — fE(EFHEZE N R BN IE T E 13,533 857
Effect of different tax rates of the group REBUAINGEE R L ESE
entities operating in jurisdictions other ERTRANENZE
than Hong Kong (3,087) 887
Income tax (credit) expenses for the year ~ AFEAHER (KR )HX
(relating to continuing operations) (BB EREE) (14,233) 2,148
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 1. BRLEREEK
Disposal of healthcare and pharmaceutical operation HERBRERER
During the year ended 30 June 2015, Island Kingdom Company REBE_ZT-—AFRAA=THLFE FT2Q

Limited (“Island Kingdom”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of Vida Laboratories Limited (“Vida Lab"), which carried
out all of the Group’s healthcare and pharmaceutical operation.
The disposal was completed on 5 November 2014, on which date
control of the healthcare and pharmaceutical operation passed
to the acquirer. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed
of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, were
disclosed in note 39.

The results of the healthcare and pharmaceutical operation
included in the loss for the year were set out below.

Profit for the year from discontinued operation

TF‘?TXiéﬁW% &lIsland Kingdom Company
Limited (TIsland Kingdom 1) 5]3x7 — 10 B & W
NHERESERBR AR ([EESMK]) &

AR EAEEMBERERERER - HESRE
R-ZT—NE+—ARAB=EA MRERER
EBZERNZABETABA-BHEEE
keaEREEZBRAEZFIE  HME39%E
E‘go

HAREEERZ R REREBOLERRA
Tx-

REEREEREREXRE 2ER

2015

—HEF

HK$'000

FET

Revenue WA 581
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,611)
Gross loss EFi8 (1,030)
Administrative expenses TEREM (133)
Other operating expenses HihEEBR (213)
Loss before taxation PR AT E 1R (1,376)
Income tax expense FrB®ifA = -
(1,376)

Gain on disposal of operation (note 39) B 2 s (EE39) 13,447

Profit for the year from discontinued operation RFEERBERIEKEEEB 2 BN

(attributable to owners of the Company) (RRRIHEAR AES) 12,071
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continuea) 1. BERIEREER (&)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation AEERBOREREER &R (£)
(Continued)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation included the REEREERIELEER 2 N BENTIE
following: B :
2015
—E-hF
HK$'000
FHET
Employee benefits expense EEREHMAX
Other staff's welfare HiETwEF 7
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z B RN BN 30
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y R MR EITE 212
Cash flows from discontinued operation ERIEREERAESRE
2015
—E-hF
HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflows from operating activities e EBIR SR FRE (15,570)
Net cash inflows from investing activities WEESRSRAFE 14,952
Net cash outflows REMEFRE (618)

110 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
g RS EEER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n © BT 15 $R &< B 5

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

12. AFEREBACEXRZ 2BR

OPERATIONS
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss for the year from continuing REERABELEEB 2
operations has been arrived at after EEE Rk (5T A) T3|IEE :
charging (crediting):
Employee benefit expense: EERAMASL:
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EEWS (K13E13) 4,821 5,846
Other staff's salaries and allowances BB TH & MERM 115,430 17,074
Other staff's retirement benefits H B TRIREFFH B
scheme contributions 7,075 457
Other staff's welfare EMmBE THEA 1,620 375
Total employee benefits expense EERENERX 128,946 23,752
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI BN & 1,180 900
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR AR X 2 F & 14,485 276,325
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz WENMEREITE
equipment 9,573 3,737
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - MERE&EBE
equipment 3,315 146
Net foreign exchange loss SNE TR FE 5,120 3,039
Share of tax of associates (included in JE(REEE R a2 BB
share of results of associates) (8 EAFEfEH’é% ERAIEE) (12,378) 7,717
Operating lease rentals in respect of HER R ZEz2RKEHERS
rented premises 6,809 7,259
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13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERFETHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 17 (2015: 12) SHEMNKEMT7R(ZE—RAF 128)8%F
directors and the chief executive were as follows: REEZTBAENMESOT
For the year ended 30 June 2016 BE-_Z—R"EANAZ=ZTHLEE
Executive Directors
YTES
Mr. Chen Mr. Zhou,
Youhua Francis
Mr. Guo Mr. An (Chief M. Miao Bingrong
Xiang  Mr.Johnny  Fengcun  Mr.Chen  Executive Tianfu Mr. Liu (Vice Mr. Hu
Mr. Cai Da (notes Huang (notes Liang Officer (notes  Mr. Li Wai Baoyu Chairman)  Zhixiong
(Chairman)  (iv), (xiv))  (note (vii)) (ii), (v)  (note (xii)  ("CEQ") (i) fvii) Hung (note (xiii)  (note (xi))  (note (vi)
RREsE
BHEE REREE (o8 BEELE BABEE
ZErs  (WE)  EXsSEE (K& Rexs  ((TEE (K0 AREEE  (FIZR) WEEEE
(X&) (xiv))  (B&E(vii)) (V) (Hi=Exi) #1) (vi)) FEEEE (W)  (KED)  (KEwD)

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fin Fin Fin TiEn TEn TR T T T T T

Emoluments paid or REALTREAATR
receivable in respect of ARBARZESH
a person’s services as EESTES 3Pd kS

a director, whether of
the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
Fees we - - - - - - - - - - -
Otfer emoluments Etiihe
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 1,040 195 351 - 186 910 - 257 73 368 1,020
Contributions to refirement RINEFE B
benefits schemes - - - - 9 - - 13 - 6 8
Emoluments paid or REZRHHRERAN AT

receivable in respect of L] kS
director’s other services BRNALRE

in connection with [EESGEL P kA

the management of (& (xviil))

the affairs of the Company

or its subsidiary undertaking

(note (xviii))

Salaries and other benefits ~ F& R EfER - 169 - - - - - - - - -

Contributions to retirement  BAAERI B

benefits schemes - 13 - - - - - - - - -

Total emoluments EMe 1,040 377 351 - 195 910 - 270 73 374 1,028
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERFETHRAEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued) BE-SE—-—ANFEANA=ZTRHLEE(#&)

Independent non-executive directors

BUkHTES
Mr. Chi Chi Mr. Yan Mr. Wang Ms. Wong
Hung, Kenneth Shengxian  Ms. Tang Qing Zhixiang NaNa Ms. Feng Jibei
(note (x)) (note (xvi)) (note ix)) (note (i) (note (viii)) (note (xv)) Total
FElEE BER%E BERT TRFEE RSzt BlEELL
(HzE(x) (H=E(xvi)) (GE) (GE) (= (vili) ) (BHEE(xv)) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TEx FET FET TET TEx
Emoluments paid or receivable BEATRERAASHHEARZ
in respect of a person’s services ~ ESMEEZAHEM2HE
as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking
Fees fika 23 60 1 60 49 - 203
Other emoluments Etofe
Salaries and other benefits HEREMRT = = = = = = 4,400
Contributions to retirement RINERIE B
benefits schemes - - - - - - 36
Emoluments paid or receivable FESERANAAEMBAR
in respect of director's other ERMEEXARES2HE
services in connection with (Bt aE (xvii) )
the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (note (xviii))
Salaries and other benefits oL EMER - - - - - - 169
Contributions to retirement BARGHEMRT
benefits schemes - - - - - - 13
Total emoluments afe 23 60 1 60 49 - 4,821
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continuea)

For the year ended 30 June 2015

13. EERFETBRAEME (&)

BE_ZT-AFRA=THLFE

Executive Directors Indepencent non-executive directors
BOES BUFHTES
Mr. Migo
Tianfu ~ Mr. Johnny Mr. Chi
(Vice Huang Mr.An Mr.Chen Ms. Xiong Chi Hung, Mr. Yan Mr. Tang Mr. Wang
Mr.CaiDa  Chairman) (CEO) Fengcun Liang Mr.Chen  YunHuan Mr. Li Wai Kenneth  Shengxian Qing Zhixiang
(Chairman)  (notes (),(vil) ~ (note (vil) (otes (il,v)  (note (i) Youhua (note (i) Hung (note ()~ (note (xvi) (note (ix)) (note (i) Total
ENELE RUFLEE
BERE (fima#) (W BERL
(XR) (B i) ) W) 1 RRERE TRBEE (FzER)) At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAT T TAL T BT TAL FAL ThT ThET TAT FHx T
Emoluments paid or HEATREADAS
receivable in respectof EMBARZEEM
aperson's servicesas  MEXAHEAZHE
a director, whether of
the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking
Fees e - - - - - - - - 60 60 60 37 217
Other emoluments Hib#e
Salaries and other benefits ~ F¢ RH 1,040 589 2377 - 20 910 193 26 - - - - 5615
Contributions to
retirement benefits
schemes - - B = 2 - o 12 - - - B 14
Total emoluments ame 1,040 589 2377 - 262 910 193 258 60 60 60 3 5846
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERFETHRAEME (@)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Notes:

(i) Appointed on 20 November 2014
(ii) Appointed on 23 January 2015
(ifi) Resigned on 23 January 2015

(iv) Appointed on 7 August 2015

(v) Resigned on 14 August 2015

(Vi) Appointed on 28 August 2015
(vii)  Resigned on 28 August 2015

(viiy  Appointed on 9 September 2015
(ix) Resigned on 9 September 2015
(x) Retired on 18 November 2015
(xi) Appointed on 11 March 2016

(Xii) Resigned on 11 March 2016

(xiii)  Appointed on 18 May 2016

(xiv)  Resigned on 18 May 2016

(xv)  Appointed on 16 August 2016
(xvi)  Resigned on 16 August 2016

(xvi)  The emoluments represent emoluments paid to Mr. Guo Xiang in connection
with management of the affairs of a subsidiary

Notes:

During the period from 1 July 2014 to 9 January 2015, Mr. Cai Da was also the CEO
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for services rendered by him
as the CEO.

During the period from 9 January 2015 to 28 August 2015, Mr. Johnny Huang was
also the CEO and his emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the CEQ.

During the period from 28 August 2015 to 13 June 2016, Mr. Hu Zhixiong was also
the CEO and his emoluments disclosed above included those for services rendered
by him as the CEOQ.

With effect from 13 June 2016, Mr. Chen Youhua is also the CEO and his
emoluments disclosed above included those for services rendered by him as the
CEO.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any emoluments during
the year (2015: nil).

MeE
0] RIFB-—NF+—-—A-+HEZRE
(ii) RIB-AF-—A-+=HEZME
iy, M-EBE-AF-A-+=HABME
(v RZZE-—AFNALBEZEE
R-ZZE-—AFN\A+EBBHE
V) RIZE-AFNA-FTNBEZRE
vy RZE-RAFNAZTNBEE
(i) RZZ-—HEFNAANBEZEE
(¥ RZZE-—AFALANEEHE
RIZE-—AF+—-A+N\HRE
s

Xy RIZ-—REZA+—HEZE
xi) RZZE-RF=ZAT—HEHE
i) RZZT—RERATNBEZE
xv) RZT—RFRAT/N\BEE
) RIZE-RFNATRBEZRE
vy RZZB-XFNATRBBHE

xvi) MeERERRBERAREBNTEALEZHE

R-E-—NFLA-BAE-T-RFE—AhBLHM 52
ﬁi%fiﬁﬂl%@ﬁ R B ER 2 B BRI TR
BRERBzHE-

RZZE-—RAF-ANBE-Z-—AFNAZ+TNBILHH
BENEAEFRETRAER BN EXRBE M BEREE
THRAERERBZHE -

RIE-RAFNANAZ+NBE_ZT-R"FXRAT=HILH
- ﬂ?*”*ﬁﬁ*ﬁi%&ﬁﬁﬁ(i@’% WREXEE2BEBEHR
HETRARRERRBZHE -

H-T-RERATZHR RRELERETHRER
REXEEZMEEREETERARRERE ZH S

FATETRABREMEEHERREAMNS (ZF—
FE) o
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14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME

AEBLfUEEMENALTH = (ZF—H
F =) AERRAER (REZHER EXH
1K) A T (ZF—RF ML) A

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2015: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 13 above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) individuals TZBMEmT:
were as follows:
2016 2015
=EB-AF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits FekEMmEF 1,952 1,698
Contributions to retirement RKEFFT B 5K
benefits scheme 36 36
1,988 1,734
Their emoluments were within the following bands REZMemBEHOEHENT
2016 2015
=EB-AF —T—hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE ANEX
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ T 2 2

MEFERN AEEBTERATAEEHIZEA
EeMe AL (BREEREE)XNMEE
AR B DA S EL AN AR 62 [ B 1) 22 B X F
REREZHE-

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

15. EREE
RABESELBRCRILREER

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RAFHEE ANEEGRER L #EEE TR

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following THEAHE
data:
2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Loss Eﬂ’é
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted — FFESRREAR K E#EEIBATHE 2 EE
loss per share (for the year attributable (RRABIHE AEIEARFEEER)
to owners of the Company) (130,043) (63,856)
Number of Number of
shares shares
R4 EE & E
‘000 ‘000
T’ T &
Number of shares B EE
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREAREEBEMA .
shares for the purpose of basic and T AR N 9
diluted loss per share 6,015,465 5,483,900

HREE T RFRA=THILFEHRESE
TTHEINZTE E%/ Bak Rt 3RESER

Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding

during the year ended 30 June 2016.

For the years ended 30 June 2015, the diluted loss per share
is same as the basic loss per share because the computation
of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2015 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding unlisted
warrants since their exercise would result in a decrease in l0ss
per share.

HERERERER -

HE-_Z—RAFNA=ZTHIFE gki#s

EEEGRENEERR BATEHE-Z

—RFANA=THILEFEZGREE BRI

4H1E“’Lﬁ1§$ Al ARITE 2 IE BT R
5 RAAEBITEREREREBERD -
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THLFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15.

From continuing operations

BRER (&)
REFECEEY

ARRREARGREFELERH 2 GRE
RNEEREBTIRIA T BB E -

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

2016 2015
—E—XHF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
(Restated)
(f&&E5))
Loss EE
Loss for the year attributable to RRRER NEEERFEEE
owners of the Company (130,043) (63,856)
Less: profit for the year from BAFEREORIEREELZ
discontinued operation pil - 12,071
Loss for the purpose of basic and ATEREFELEER  BRERR
diluted loss per share from continuing BEEEMAZEE
operations (130,043) (75,927)

The denominators used are same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year ended 30 June 2016.

For the years ended 30 June 2015, the diluted loss per share
is same as the basic loss per share because the computation
of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2015 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding unlisted
warrants since their exercise would result in a decrease in 10ss
per share.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15.

From discontinued operation

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
discontinued operation of the Company is based on the following

BRER (&)
RESRILRE XK

EN/NSIPNE E%%u:i<<‘%%%’121ﬂxﬁ$&§&%
BN TRATBEAE

data:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit Y A
Profit for the purpose of basic and AEREERIEEEER
diluted earnings per share from BREARREERBN A2 5T
discontinued operation - 12,071
Number of Number of
shares shares
R4 EE & E
'000 ‘000
TR T %
Weighted average number of SEEREREFNMAZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR N 9
basic earnings per share 6,015,465 5,483,900
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares; B #& L @M 2 F &
Unlisted warrants IE LR AEE - 215,560
Weighted average number of HESREERFFAZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of AR N B
diluted earnings per share 6,015,465 5,699,460

Diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2016.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation was HK0.22 cent and HK0.21 cent respectively for
the year ended 30 June 2015, based on profit for the year
ended 30 June 2015 of approximately HK$12,071,000 from the
discontinued operation and the denominators detailed above for
basic and diluted earnings per share respectively.

HRBE—T— —\E *+E¢¢F§$ﬁiﬁ§§?
TR ZBEESRTEBR ALEREERN
E‘@H&%Zliéﬂffﬁlﬂ"

BE-_ZT—RAFA=Z1THIEFE BERIEK
%%WZHX%ZK&%%QW 3 Bl A&0.2278 1L
20218 M TR RIREHZE =T —AF <A
:+EIJ£¢FPK§Eiiﬁﬁééﬁﬁzﬂ’]iﬁéf%ﬁ
12,071 oooﬁ%nxzixpi HERAR
MEBRMNZHETE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% BEKRRE

office
equipment,
Land and Plants and Laboratory Leasehold  furniture and Motor
buildings machineries equipment  improvements fixtures vehicles Total
BAERE:
THEET HERHE BERERG % KRARETEE RE L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FhEx T T FAL FAL ThEL ThEL
Cost RA
At 1 July 2014 RZE-EE+A-A 1,095 46,745 2 5,706 4976 1,362 59,868
Additions HE - 48 B - 485 3% 568
Disposal/write off e/ - (29) - - (13) (203) (245)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (24) (907) (191 - (2.842)
Bxchange realignment Apx (116) (5,060) N - (54) 416) (5,646)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZZ-RERAZTER
“E2-R4%tA-H 939 0,704 - 4799 3483 778 51,703
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 2,085 20,497 - - 9% - 26,880
Additions HE 6910 20,178 - - 158 312 27,558
Disposal/write off e/ - (793) - (3,143) (304) (31) 4271)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - (53) - (53)
Bxchange realignment J%: (224) (8,099) - (122) (179) (106) (8,726)
At 30 June 2016 RZZE-~§~A=1H 9,910 774901 - 1,534 3203 953 93,091
Accumulated depreciation and RAERAE
impairment
At1July 2014 RZE-m&+A-A 2 1,883 3 1238 2932 127 6,205
Depreciation provided for the year TEEHRZIE 3 1970 1 584 1,245 12 3949
Eliminated on disposal ISR - (N - - 8] (39 3
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries B &K B2 AR 38 - - (@] (181) (1.83) - (2021)
Exchange realignment HBE 0} 80) - (1) () () 91)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZE-H1F~A=TAK
“T-RFtf-H 44 3772 B 1,640 2334 209 7999
Depreciation provided for the year TEEHEZNE 316 8,005 - 611 535 106 9,573
Impairment loss recognised REEAER L REEE
in profit or loss 1,231 28,200 - - 197 359 29,987
Eliminated on disposal/write off RILE /MiHE - (84) - (743) (80) (31 (938)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 5 H &K B2 ARy 38 - - - - (34) - (34)
Bxchange realignment Apx 17 252 - (16 () 1 193
At 30 June 2016 RZE-~§~A=tH 1,608 40,145 - 1,492 2891 644 46,780
Carrying amounts REE
At 30 June 2016 RZE-XE~A=1H 8,302 37,346 - i 312 309 46,311
At 30 June 2015 R-Z-R%F~A=1H 895 37932 - 3159 1,149 569 43,704
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For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE—
16.

T—XRNENAZTALFE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Land and buildings 5%
Plants and machineries 5%
Laboratory equipment 20%

20% or over the
relevant lease terms,
which is shorter
20% — 40%

Leasehold improvements

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles 25%
As at 30 June 2016, the Group has not been granted the
certificates of ownership for certain buildings with carrying
values of approximately HK$3,294,000 (2015: Nil) from the
relevant PRC government authorities. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the absence of formal title to these
properties does not impair their values to the Group as the
Group has paid in full purchase consideration of these buildings
and the probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence
of formal title is remote.

The fluorite product segment has reported continuing losses
and its future profitability remains uncertain giving rise to
an indication that the value of the Groups' property, plant
and equipment may be impaired. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and as
a result the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
were written down by approximately HK$29,987,000 (2015 Nil)
during year ended 30 June 2016. The estimates of recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment were based on the
respective assets’ fair value less costs of disposal. The fair
values less costs of disposal were determined according to the
valuation performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited,
an independent firm of surveyors, using market approach. The
market approach has taken into account (i) recent sales price
of similar assets within the same industry, adjusting differences
such as condition and timing of transaction.

The recoverable amounts of the impaired property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$5,462,000. The
recoverable amounts were determined based on the respective
assets’ fair value less costs of disposal. The fair values less
costs of disposal were determined according to the valuation
performed by an independent firm of surveyors, using market
approach. The market approach has taken into account (i) recent
sales price of similar assets within the same industry, adjusting
differences such as condition and timing of transaction; and (i)
recent purchase price of similar assets, adjusting for differences
such as condition, utility and age. They are grouped into Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

16.

ME BERRE 2

A EME - BE RREHEBIRATIIFTERIA
BERABFNE:

T RAEF 5%
R R 28 5%
ERERE 20%
K 20%% 1% 15 A

HEHR

(ABBEREERE)

WAZRIE FAR
B EE

At

RZZB—RENA=TH AEELEERE
B BB BF PR T Bk B 40 /33,294,00078 7T
—E-RFE)ZETBFIMAREE N
NREEER S ARAKE BB NBEEZX
FEF 2 RERERERIENREERMRKER
FIRJBEE IR A EMER BRI X EER
BRAEHAEENEE-

20% —40%
25%

BAERDHEHENRESER MERKET
BENNTHEE  BEENRBRAEEME B
ERSHEEBEEXSHBERE REE-_Z—X
FRAZ+THLEFE AEEFHYE BE
MEREBzAI RO &5 AL EDE BE&
SR 7 BREMEMUR £929,987,000/8 L (— &2 —H
FE) - WE BEMKE M E 58
TIRBHBEEZ AFEREEXATE D
SER S A AN THAR B R T8 SR 2 B0 A B 1T
BIERMARARIRAME ERETZIHEEE -
MEEEF RORITERNBUEE 2 A EE
(FRABRZZGBEEREREEZR) -

EREMER BMELREZ A WEE RS
5,462,000/ 7T A B S B IRIBEEEE L
DR B R ANGHE - D FER R AT
RIBR—FELAERMARERT S EETZ
MEEE & mHECE ROFERBELEEN
MHISHEER  YREBR Z 2 G REHEE
EELAR: MEUEERIHEEER X
RIBIRT AHARERFREZRELFE-
REFBRAFEERE _H-
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For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE-F AFAP=TALEE
17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$'000
FHET

Cost 5%
At 1July 2014 RZZE—NFE+H—H 55,013
Exchange realignment HME (6,487)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZZE-—RFA=1THEK

—ET-hF+H—H 48,526
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) KB UWEHE AR Z TS (KsE37) 1,833
Exchange realignment HigEk (559)
At 30 June 2016 —E-RFANA=1H 49,800
Accumulated impairment losses i BESR
At 1 July 2014 R-ZTE—NF+HA—H 9,200
Impairment loss recognised for the year REEHRZBEREE 15,250
Exchange realignment Hiax (237)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 RZE—RFRNA=THEK

—E-hFEH—H 24,213
Impairment loss recognised for the year AFEEBHRZBEESRE 6,994
Exchange realignment Hipx (183)
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RFEAA=+H 31,024
Carrying amounts REE
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RFEAA=+H 18,776
At 30 June 2015 R_ZE-—RFRA=1H 24,313

Goodwill with cost of HK$26,262,000 was allocated to the PR
ASIA Consultants Limited (“PR Asia Consultants”) which is
engaged in the provision of public relations services as at 30
June 2016 and 2015.

Goodwill with cost of approximately Mongolian Tugrik (“MNT")
5,527,603,000, equivalent to approximately HK$21,824,000 (2015:
MNT5,527,603,000, equivalent to approximately HK$22,264,000)
was allocated to the Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining Co., Limited
and its subsidiary (“Sino-Mongolia Group”) which is principally
engaged in the processing and trading of fluorite products
segment as at 30 June 2016.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B8 (&)

Goodwill with cost of approximately RMB1,468,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,714,000) was allocated to the Everbest
Return Limited and its subsidiary (“Everbest Return Group”)
which are principally engaged in the coal mining service segment
as at 30 June 2016.

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 30 June 2016 allocated to these units
are as follows:

RAREBH AR 468,0007T (HHERH
1,714,000 70) 2 & E 5 B ZEverbest
Return Lmted&ﬁﬂﬁ% 7] ([Everbest Return
£8]) - ER= /\E/\Hf-?—EIIK?iE%
@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁk’\‘ o

R-ZFB-—R"ENA=ZTBEZEEKREE(EH
BRRABERE) DR TREEMNT

2016 2015
—NE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Coal mining service HIER R
— Everbest Return Group —Everbest Returng 1,714 -

Advertising and public relations EERAE

- PR Asia Consultants — MR 17,062 17,062
Fluorite products - Sino-Mongolia Group BRER-—TREE = 7,257
18,776 24,313

PR Asia Consultants

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (2015: 2.5%). The cash
flow projection is discounted at pre-tax discount rate of 17.67%
(2015: 17.86%) per annum which reflects the specific risks
relating to this CGU.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecast periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

CED/ PN

iﬁi%igﬁuz—ﬂi@i%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁf {ER ;ﬁ’
WEARBEEEESI AFHHEHHEE
qu ZTEqufﬁimuiﬁE B3R HAR 2 3R
®METIA3% —RF:25%)EBREHE
H-He e E/EUETQ%RH'JEEEE—'—3517.67%
:?—fﬁi517.86%)55£ﬁ’ﬁﬂ5ﬁ$&@§2
REeEXBENMZEERR -

FREENE 2 BREBHRAE AR AR 28
BR - BERARBESHZBER ZS5EBR
MEREREATRELEEBHMBGERY
BB M E °
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
BHEZZ—A"FA=THLFE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B8 (&)

PR Asia Consultants (Continued)

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. The cash flow projections for
this CGU was prepared and projected based on the actual latest
financial information of PR Asia Consultants. For the years ended
30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, as the recoverable amount
of this CGU determined is higher than the carrying amount of
this CGU, the Group does not recognise any impairment loss in
respect of the goodwill for both years.

Sino-Mongolia Group

Year ended 30 June 2016

The Sino-Mongolia Group has reported continuing losses and its
future profitability remains uncertain giving rise to an indication
that the value of relevant goodwill may be impaired. The
directors of the Company have performed a simple estimation
of the value-in-use of the Sino-Mongolia Group assuming that
the production of fluorite products which has been suspended
during the year, will not be resumed in foreseeable future and
consider that the recoverable amount of the Sino-Mongolia
Group is zero as at 30 June 2016. As a result of the above
assessment, the Group has made an additional impairment loss
of approximately HK$6,994,000 in respect of the goodwill for the
year ended 30 June 2016.

Year ended 30 June 2015

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a ten-year period, which aligns with
the useful lives of assets relating to this CGU, approved by the
management. The cash flow projection is discounted at pre-tax
discount rate of 17.87% per annum which reflects the specific
risks relating to this CGU.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Sino-Mongolia Group (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2015 (Continued)

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecast periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. The cash flow projection
for this CGU was prepared and projected based on the actual
latest financial information of Sino-Mongolia Group. For the year
ended 30 June 2015, as the recoverable amount of this CGU
of approximately HK$48,472,000 was lower than the carrying
amount of this CGU, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$15,250,000 in respect of goodwill for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

Everbest Return Group

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a four-year period, approved by the
management. The cash flow projection is discounted at pre-tax
discount rate of 26% per annum which reflects the specific risks
relating to this CGU.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecast periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. The cash flow projection
for this CGU was prepared and projected based on the actual
latest financial information of Everbest Return Group. As the
recoverable amount of this CGU determined is higher than
the carrying amount of this CGU, no impairment loss has been
recognised.

17. B8 (&)

hERER (4)
BE-Z-AFX A=THLEFEE @)

EREEFE ZBRRRAABIRANRE 8
RBE BRERARFEEIHZBR ZEFRR
HEEEREAERAREEBEMBER L
HEMEE -

REAADEREREAEENEL2EEL
BEXHERET - ARSELBUNASRE
BRATDRBEPREBENER SIS ERHRE
LB -BE-T-RFA=THILFE" A
RAZIR & B A B2 AT YR [E] & BE #948,472,000
ATERZREELEM 2 REE  ARER
HE_T-—AFA=THILFERHERR
BB [E518 4915,250,00078 7T ©

Everbest Returng

REEEEN 2 AIRE S HEIRERBEETE

WERARBEEESH 2 WFHR MBS

FFECZRERERINEE RERETER TR
U AT AL IR R G F26%85 3R - i Z AR KRR A
BRI e EE BN 2 SRR -

ERAEBENE CERERABRERLREZR
AR FAERANBEIHZBR ZFRR
MEEERBEAERAMNEEBHMSERL

BENADEEERERAEBAENEL2EE L
BEGBERET ARSELEEUNRERE
8381 T AR #5 Everbest Returnse B 69 & B & i1 Bt
BEMGRERGEE ARNEE ZRSELS
fzaElecEeRZEcELEUZERER
B M EERRERE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

18. CUSTOMER CONTRACTS

18. EF &4

Customer
contracts
EFEEYN
HK$'000
FET
Cost R
At 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015 RZE—WFEA—BR=_ZE—HFA=1+H -
Acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries REWEEH B R RIFTE 339,592
Exchange realignment b H 5 2 (22,086)
317,506
Accumulated amortisation and Rt RBERE
impairment losses
At 30 June 2015 RZZE-—RFRA=1H -
Amortisation during the year REFEH 28,202
Impairment loss recognised for the year RNEEHRBEEE 95,368
Exchange realignment PE W A (3,285)
At 30 June 2016 WZZE—XRFEA=1H 120,285
Carrying amounts REE
At 30 June 2016 RZE—REXNA=TH 197,221
At 30 June 2015 RZE—RFA=1H -
The above customer contracts were purchased as part of a BREFENIIRAFEREFEREBEHZ
business combination during the year. — &5 e
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For the year ended 30 June 2016

HEZT

—RERAZTRLEEE

18. CUSTOMER CONTRACTS (continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:
Customer contracts 8 —18 years
The recoverable amount of the customer contracts was
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections which align with the useful lives of the related coal
mines, approved by the management. The cash flow projection is
discounted at pre-tax discount rate ranging from 28% to 32% per
annum which reflects the specific risks relating to the customer
contracts.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue
and budgeted expenses during the projections, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. The cash flow projection
for the customer contracts was prepared and projected based
on the actual latest financial information of Everbest Return
Group. As the recoverable amounts of the customer contracts
determined are approximately HK$218,285,000, lower than
the carrying amounts of the customer contracts, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately HK$95,368,000
in respect of customer contracts for the year ended 30 June
2016.

18.

BEEEHN #)

bETEEAREAERFH ZFETE
ERBEAVER AT BRI # 84 :

BEFEH 8 —184F
EPEH e eERFAEENE  LE
REBREA L EAEEEREERFH B
iﬁiuwg?g BIEEE - IRE M TER TR T AT AL

MEGFRUENR%ME MZMBEERIRE
BEPaiz FERR-

EREENEZEREBRAE BN GRE 2/
AR FAERANBESHZBR  ZFRR
HEREREAERBLERBHMHEERLZ
BHIMERE -

BEAADEEERETERABETELSESE
VEEGHBERET BPEONRESRERE
B 75 4R #& Everbest Returnfk B #) & B & 3 B 75
EHRERGFE-BE-_ZE—"F~A=1
AEFEE BREBEEZRFPAEOZATRE S
EH49218,285,0008 7L KRR ZEREF G H 2

REHE AEEREPANBEAREEELD
95,368,000/ 7T ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
BHEZZ—AR"FA=THILFE

19. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 19. BRRFAEEE
Mining
rights
g
HK$'000
FHT
Cost EEZIK
At 1 July 2014 R-ZE—NWF+HA—H 1,303
Exchange realignment M 5 B (74)
At 30 June 2015 R-ZZE—hFA=+H 1,229
Exchange realignment M 5 B (18)
At 30 June 2016 RZZE—XRFRA=1H 1,211
Accumulated impairment losses ZItREEER
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 R-ZE—NF+EH—H-
—E-AFAHA=THEK
Impairment loss recognised for the year REEHRBEEE 1,190
Exchange realignment ME 5, 78 B 21
At 30 June 2016 MZZE—XRFERA=1H 1,211
Carrying amounts BREE
At 30 June 2016 MZZE—XRFERA=1H -
At 30 June 2015 RZE—RAFEA=FH 1,229

The mining rights represent the cost of the acquisition of the
licences granted by Mongolia government for the exploration
of minerals within two mines located in Mongolia, being the
first mine with an aggregate area of approximately 50 hectares
for the licence period from 29 January 2007 to 28 January 2037
("Mine 1) and the second mine with an aggregate area of
approximately 314 hectares for the licence period from 1 August
2007 to 30 July 2037 (“Mine 2"). Small scale exploration prior to
commercial production stage has been conducted relating to the
Mine 1 and no production has been commenced for the Mine 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘l

BRI ¥R & T 5T

For the year ended 30 June 2016

HE-T—
19.

20.

NEANA=TRILFE
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

Having considered that no substantive exploration works and
evaluation of mineral reserves/resources in respect of the Mine
1 and Mine 2 have been conducted, management of the Sino-
Mongolia Group is of the view that the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of these two mines are yet to become
demonstrable, these exploration and evaluation assets have
not been reclassified to property, plant and equipment and
depreciation on such assets has not commenced.

The Sino-Mongolia Group has reported continuing losses and its
future profitability remains uncertain giving rise to an indication
that the value of the related exploration and evaluation assets
may be impaired. The directors of the Company have performed
a simple estimation of the value in use the Sino-Mongolia
Group assuming that the production of fluorite products which
has been suspended during the year, will not be resumed in
foreseeable future and consider that the recoverable amount of
the Sino-Mongolia Group is zero as at 30 June 2016. As a result

19.

BRRFEEE (@)

EERRIES R2SFIES W BEETER, SR
ZEERBEITIERTE P REECERER
B MBS 2 B AT R AT
KRABE ZEHERTHEERRENDE
EME -BEAEE ALZSEECTER
KFLE -

PREBDIHENEEE MERKBFGE

DT BREPRBEEBHERTHE
EZEEXGLRBE ARAREEEHFTR
EEZFERAEEETHEMST  HRRERA
FEREREZ% E§m$§h$ﬁﬂTﬁﬁ
ARMRE WRAEPEEBR - —RF/AH
—tHZzAKkEEEAT- %miuﬂﬁvﬁ
EEERBEE_T—"EAZTAHLFEZ
@%&%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmm%mm

of the above assessment, the Group has made a full impairment BLT(ZT—HF &)
loss of approximately HK$1,190,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of the
exploration and evaluation assets for the year ended 30 June
2016.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIHHERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of investments WEIILTREAFZSZ
in unlisted equity securities (note) AN (5D 23,600 23,600
Less: impairment loss recognised BB R REEE (23,600) (23,600)
Note: The investment in unlisted equity securities is measured at cost less Mizr: IELTBRAE S ZIBRERNREPRIEK AR BE

impairment at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

8 AR EBATERAZ SERE  HitA
AREFERA AR FEEEF SR
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

At 30 June 2016, the management of the Group carried out
review on impairment on its unlisted equity investments. The
management has reviewed for any objective evidence of the
existence of any impairment on the investments and such
evidence including, but not limited to the following:

(@ a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the

interest in the investments;

(b) significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic, or legal environment in which the investee

companies operated;

() structural changes in the industry in which the investee

companies operated:;

(d) changes in the level of demand of the products of the

investee companies; and

(e) changes in the financial condition of the investee

companies.

In order to perform the above assessments, the management
has obtained the unaudited financial information of the investee
company and discussed with the management the operations of
the investee company and their future funding requirements.

As a result of the above assessment, management considers the
impairment loss recognised as adequate but not excessive.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21. HitERBEE
2016 2015
—EB-XEF —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deposit paid in respect of LUk B8 Everbest Return& & 2
acquisition of Everbest Return Group BAES (M)
(note (i) - 68,000
Earnest money paid in respect of U BEEverbest Return&E &
acquisition of Everbest Return Group BfHEES (i)
(note (ii) - 8,000
- 76,000

Note: T

(i) As of 30 June 2015, a deposit of HK$68,000,000 relating to the acquisition of (i) RZZE—RFERNA=+H " 23U EEEverbest Retun
Everbest Return Group had been paid to Mr. Hu zhixiong, a director of the EEMPEELE (ARRAES) RBEH LT (IF
Company and Ms. Fan Aixian as vendors (the “Vendors”). The acquisition BEH) ([E5]) X 41#$68,000,000% T  :Z Uk B
was completed on 31 July 2016 and the deposit has been utilised during the RZE—AFELA=Z+—HAZK MEEERFNR
year to complete the acquisition of Everbest Return Group. &) A3 LA 52 K U i Everbest ReturnsE [ -

Further details of the acquisition are set out in note 37. B EZWE 2 B SR HTEE37 »

(ii) As of 30 June 2015, an earnest money amounted to HK$8,000,000 relating (ii) RZZT—RFANA=1A KAEE st EEverbest
to the acquisition of Everbest Return Group was deposited by the Company Return$e [ 12 A7 4 5 4 15 A 58 2 ©:8,000,000/4 7T ©
to Mr. Hu Zhixiong. The acquisition was completed on 31 July 2016 and the ZWER _Z—A"FLtA=ZT—HXK MHAES
earnest money has been utilised during the year to complete the acquisition B B A DA e A Y Everbest Return s &

of Everbest Return Group.

Further details of the acquisition are set out in note 37. BRZWEE 2 BB SR RE37 ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 22. RBEERRZRE BWHE R RRE

DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of investment in unlisted associates & FE TR AR Z A 316,134 316,134
Additions (note a) ANE (Hixa) = -
Share of post-acquisition losses and FERI B B R 2R
other comprehensive expense (119,049) (37,031)
Dividend received B B (30,500) -
Dividend receivable (included FEUR AR B, (FH AU & A 5] 5/08)
as amounts due from associates) (181,500) -
Gain on deemed dilution in interests RERE N R 2w TR IEEE 2 s
in associates (note b) (FF3ED) 15,330 -
415 279,103
Amounts due from associates (note c¢) JE UGB 2 A | 508 (BfsEc) 181,868 -
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (60,000) -
121,868 -

Note a:

On 29 July 2015, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company has set up a
limited company in Hong Kong, Bullish Times Media Limited (“Bullish Times Media”)
with two independent third parties and injected HK$245 to Bullish Times Media,
which represented 24.5% equity interests in Bullish Times Media.

On 29 July 2015, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has set up a
limited company in Hong Kong, Bullish Times Technology Limited (“Bullish Times
Technology”) with two independent third parties and injected HK$245 to Bullish
Times Technology, which represented 24.5% equity interests in Bullish Times
Technology.

Note b:

0On 29 June 2016, Asset Management International Limited issue additional shares
to an independent third party, and received certain Hong Kong listed shares with
value of HK$40,000,000 as consideration. Immediately following the completion of
the issuing, the Group's shareholding in Asset Management International Limited
was decreased to 30%. A gain on deemed dilution of approximately HK$15,330,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 22. RBEEDRNRZRE BWHEE R RRE

DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (continued) (%)
Note ¢ B EEC -
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on FEN S AR FUE R EER R RERERHEE
demand.
As at 30 June 2016 and 2015, the Group has interests in the following associates: RIE-—RFRZZE-—AFNA=TH REERTHIEZ
NEFERER
Proportion of
ownership interest or
Country of Principal place  Class of participating shares  Proportion of voting
Name of Entity Form of entity ~  incorporation of operation shares held held the Group power held  Principal activities
rREAEMERER
ERZE BRpA SR LER TEREBY FiRBER F2ERBBIN FERERESL  TEER
Asset Management Incorporated British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Ordinary 30% (2015: 40%) 30% (2015:40%)  Investment holding
International Limited ("BVI")
Asset Management RaifAv RBEBARES £ Liak 30% % RAER
International Limited ([ZBgAREE]) (ZZ—RF:40%) (ZZ—RF:40%)
Regal Boom Limited (note )~ Incorporated BVI Hong Kong Ordinary 30% (2015: 40%) 30% (2015:40%)  Investment holding
Regal Boom Limited (Fizkd) A RBEBAREE i il 30% % REAER
ZE-RE40%) (ZZ-A%F:40%)
Ultimate Achieve Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 30% (2015: 40%) 30% (2015:40%)  Securities trading
(note d)
Ultimate Achieve Limited RaifAv i £ Liak 30% % EFERS
(Wizkd) (ZZ—5%:40%) (ZZ—02%F:40%)
Amazing Success Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary Nil (2015: 40%) Nil (2015:40%)  Property investment
(note €)
Amazing Success Limited Bl BB BB LRk z T DERE
(Mizre) (ZZ—R%:40%) (ZZ-AR%F:40%)
China Universal Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary Nil (2015: 40%) Nil (2015: 40%) Property investment
(note €)
EHERAF (Mite) R Eif i il z T MERE
ZE-RE40%) (ZZ-A%F:40%)
Million Worldwide Limited Incorporated BVI Hong Kong Ordinary Nil (2015: 40%) Nil (2015: 40%) Property investment
(note €)
Million Worldwide Limited RaifAv RBEBARES A Liak ES T MERE
(Hizke) T—REF40%) (ZZ—02%F:40%)
Perfect Elite Investments Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary Nil (2015: 40%) Nil (2015:40%)  Property investment
Limited (note )
BAREARAT (Frite)  HMMAL & & Liak z T DERE

(Z2-RE:4%)  (ZE-EF:40%)
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 22. ARBE QAT 2RE EWEE N TRE
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (continuea) (&

Note c: (Continued) fizkc : (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest or

Country of Principal place  Class of participating shares  Proportion of voting
Name of Entity Form of entity ~  incorporation of operation shares held held the Group power held  Principal activities
FREMEAERER
ER2E BRpA MR LER TELEHY FiRBER F2ERABIN FRREREIN  FEEH
Talent Vision Limited (note ¢) ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary Nil (2015: 40%) Nil (2015:40%)  Property investment
Talent Vision Limited (Fizte)  #BML & i Liak z T DERE
(ZZ—R%:40%) (ZZ-R%F:40%)
Bullish Times Media (note f) Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 14.7% (2015 N/A) 14.7% (2015: N/A) Media
RERER () AR A i il 14.7% W o EE
(Z2-n%:7T8R) (Z2-1%: TEAR)
Bullish Times Technology Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 14.7% (2015 N/A) 14.7% (2015:N/A)  Mobile phone's
(note ) application
development
RERRE (M) AR A i il 14.7% W% FHERRE
(Z2-n%:7T8R) (Z2-1%: TEAR)
Note d: B 3d -

The Group exercise significant influence over these associates indirectly through its
30% (2015: 40%) interest in Asset Management International Limited during the year.

Note e:

The Group exercised significant influence over these entities indirectly through
its 40% interest in Asset Management International Limited in prior years. Asset
Management International Limited disposed of these entities during the year.

Note f:

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Bullish Time Media and
Bullish Time Technology because it has the power to appoint one out of the
five directors of the companies under the provisions stated in shareholders’
agreements.

The above table lists the associates which were accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS 22. RBE QAT 2RE WS N TRE
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (continuea) (&)

BAKBBEERTE 2B E AR (AEEA
ROMPBEERBEEIIMT -

The summarised financial information in respect of the
associates that is material to the Group and is accounted for
using equity method is set out below:

Asset Management International Limited and its Asset Management International Limited

subsidiaries EEHEB QT
2016 2015
—~NE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 4 52,544
Current assets MENEE 190,900 696,232
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (38,133)
Current liabilities mENAE (189,521) (12,886)
Net assets BEFE 1,383 697,757
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
BZE H=E
—NE —hF
ANBA=1H ~NA=1+H
IEFE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue WA 783 4,994
Loss and total comprehensive expense rAFEEBEREEARAS
for the year 204,743 12,983
Dividends received and receivable from AEFEE W& U Z N RIS
the associate during the year 212,000 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2016
BHE_ZT—RFA=-TALEFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (continued)

Asset Management International Limited and its

subsidiaries (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial statements to
the carrying amount of the interests in the associates recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

22. REERNT2RE W&
(%)

Asset Management International Limited

REMEBRR (&)

EXBEAE 2 M RS R SR B S AR TR

BRRFRZESREEHRNAT

2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net assets of associates BERNR 2 EEHRE 1,383 697,757
Non-controlling interests of the associate B A 7 2 JE¥E AR fE 25 = -
Net assets of the associate after RINBREEE N R Z IEERE SR 2
deducting non-controlling interests of GENEEEFE
the associate 1,383 697,757
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEREERNE 2 B EERT D
interest in the associate 30% 40%
Group'’s share of net assets of REBEEEE RAREETFE
the associate 415 279,103
Carrying amount of the Group's REBPREE N TR REE
interests in associates 415 279,103

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate,
of the Group's interests in associates that are not individually

@RS L TEXBRBREEARNANEE
REEE NP EAMEER LRRESD

material and are accounted for using the equity method are set JUNE
out below:
2016 2015
— AN —hF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
The Group's share of loss REBEEEER - n/a -1~ i
The Group's share of other comprehensive 7N £2 [ FE {5 H fh 2 U 25
income - n/a 1~ A
The Group's share of total comprehensive — 7S£ [ fE {5 2 W 25 42 58
income - n/a i A
Carrying amount of the Group's interests ~ AEBR T E AR E A A ER A
in immaterial associates RMEMAE - n/a 1~ A
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HE_Z—"FA=THILFE

23.

24.

INVENTORIES 23. 78
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—FhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw material R# 4,242 8,570
TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, ESEWRE BEREERHEMEWRR

|
2016 2015
—E—XHF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables g 5 WA 149,131 17,380
Less: Impairment B ORE (8,079) 9,119)
141,052 8,261
Bills receivables R 31,167 -
Receivables arising from dealing BE FMEBSHFMEE 2 EWFIE
in listed securities 11,122 38
Consideration receivable from i {3 5 R < FE MR B (B EE39)
disposal of Vida Lab (Note 39) - 1,000
Other deposits paid HEihE e 28,214 1,632
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,335) -
25,879 1,632
Prepayments TEA 3R 2,415 10,169
Other receivables H b fE W IR 4,090 2,927
215,725 24,027

All the bills receivables are aged within 185 days.
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HEZZ—A"FA=THLFE

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. EZRWRE BRRERHEthEER

(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, presented
based in the invoice date which approximated the date of
revenue recognition:

15 (%)

BAOR/BAERERZBERERAZIZEF RN
RIEZ FRER D ATIAT

2016 2015

—EB-RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

0-30 days 0230k 42,627 5,352
31-60 days 31260K 21,848 1,881
61-90 days 61290K 37,443 414
Over 90 days B IAI0K 39,134 614
141,052 8,261

The Group grants a credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days to its
customers. No interest is charged on overdue trade receivables.
The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers the trade and other receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality as they relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below
for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant
change in the credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BEZRWRE BRFEERHEtEER

(Continued) | (#&)
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired © J60 28 1B 36 M Rl {8 2 FE WKL RR RR ik
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Up to 90 days &= %90K 93,636 2,509
91-180 days 91E180K 4,789 400
98,425 2,909
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group NEBETE S EKRFENTE 4R NEFZE
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable BESEWSRIBEAEZEVBE LY AR ERE
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the HAREEEEZNEMEs) - AEENEEED
reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to EREER BAEFPEMENEEG SEE-
the customer base being large and unrelated.
Movements in the impairment loss of trade receivables are as B WIS IEREEE @8 :
follows:
2016 2015
—F—RF .
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at the beginning of the year NG 9,119 -
Impairment loss recognised REFERER 2 RIEEE
during the year 2,030 9,119
Exchange realignment HigE (3,070) -
Balance at the end of the year RERZ &85 8,079 9,119
Included in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are HAZZEWZBBZ RERESRAEHY
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance 8,079,000/ ( =& —HAF : 9,119,000/ L) 2
of approximately HK$8,079,000 (2015: HK$9,119,000) which are BRRES FEWNESIE  ZESEHERRES
long outstanding with no subsequent settlement. BREENW B R ETE R e
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24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24.

(Continued)

Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired
(Continued)

Movements in the impairment loss of other deposits paid are as

B ZBWHIEA BRREREbERR
15 (%)

180 28 1B 36 R Rl (8 2 FBE WRR BR iR (42)

Hih 2 RS 2 BEBRESHHEINMT -

follows:

2016 2015
—B—AF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Balance at the beginning of the year REY 2 &8k - -

Impairment loss recognised RERNERZRIEEE
during the year 2,407 -
Exchange realignment HIE (72) -
Balance at the end of the year RERZ 48R 2,335 -

The Group individually assessed all other receivables and
provided in full for those receivables that are considered not
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Include in trade, bills and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

United States Dollars (“USD") Ex([ZEx])
RMB AREE

ZRE BB R Al P A Ho At R IR I 3 7% 5 4
BATRIYE 2 EYGRIAE L 2R BHHE - A&
B R F R A T AEA

BN E 5 EWGR - B YRR M H WO
H NI ERSEER B 2R S
ZEBIEZ S

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT

494 3,544

188 -
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. BWER
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unsecured loan receivables JEUR R E R 126,913 111,081
Less: impairment losses recognised B R EEE (9,634) (7,648)
117,279 103,433
At 30 June 2016, loans to third parties with an aggregate RZE—RFRNA=TH BFE=-FZER
principal and accrued interest amounting to approximately A MEFE A HE49117,279,0008 T (==
HK$117,279,000 (2015: HK$103,433,000) are unsecured, bear — A4 103,433,000/ 70 ) AEE IR - IR [E E F
fixed interest ranging from 5% to 24% (2015: 5% to 12%) per 5% ZE24% (ZZF—HF :5%212% ) 5H E &
annum and are repayable within one year and thus classified as AR—FAEE WOEARRSEE-
current assets.
Included in the loan receivables, a balance of approximately EURERBE—ER_E—FA=1HA
HK$10,405,000 (2015: Nil) was guaranteed by an independent WS = T EREAERREY10,405,0008 7T (=&
third party as at 30 June 2016. —RHFE:ET)o
The loan receivables are due for settlement at the date specified FREFRERRZIETE 2 BHRIESE-

in the respect loan agreements.
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. ERER (&)
Movements in the impairment loss of loan receivables are as ERERZRERBBESHHIIMT
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZET—AHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at the beginning of the year REV 2 &8k 7,648 -
Impairment loss recognised RERNERZRIEEE
during the year 1,986 7,648
Balance at the end of the year RE R &8 9,634 7,648
Impairment loss of approximately HK$9,634,000 (2015: NR-ZZE—RNENA=ZTH CEREBEMGHFFAT
HK$7,648,000) recognised as at 30 June 2016 is based on W [B] & %8 SRR (B BT 18 499,634,000 7T (=&
estimated irrecoverable amount by reference to the creditability —RF 7,648,000/ 70) AU EIEEE T2 E
of the customer, past default experience and subsequent BRERNEHRRE BEXRTELERBENM
settlement. BH-
26. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26. BIEEERE
Held-for-trading investments include: FRIEEBERERRE:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Equity securities listed Hong Kong, REBLTHRAZS EmE
at market value 69,621 19,213

The fair values of these investments are determined with DEREZRANFEDN2EMRIMBEAEE
reference to quoted market bid prices. JE °
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. REeRBREEEY
As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s bank balance carry interest at RZEBE-—RERNA=Z+TAH AEENRITLE
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.2% (2015: 0.01% to 1%) per annum. BIENF0.01%E12% (ZE— R F:001%=

1%) 2 F R K3 8.0

Include in cash and cash equivalents are the following amounts BRERRE KRS EEN S TIIAEREERE
PN

denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies BEBINEEE AN EBIIE S5
of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

usb ETT 335 4,241

RMB AR 92 437
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. ESZRHEMENRKIE

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Trade payables g S EMNIE 10,246 4,653

Deposits received BUiEe 2,950 288

Payables for acquisition of fixed assets W EEEEEE < BN FIE 3,365 -

Accrued mining service costs JE S ERTE AR 75 A R 40,488 -

Accrued staff costs JEEHE T A 21,324 85

Other tax payables H bR 7,545 -

Accrued expenses JEETFA X 1,805 913

Interest payable (Note 30) JE A FI B (B 3E30) 1,617 -

Other payables H b fETFUR 1,575 2,340

90,882 8,279
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28

29.

144

. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continueq) 28

ESREMENSRIE #)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the REZAZIN 2 EHENFIBZERSNN
invoice date: I

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
0-30 days 0E30K 2,809 1,665
31-60 days 31E60K 1,673 49
61-90 days 61290K 1,845 8
Over 90 days B #B90K 3,919 2,931
10,246 4,653

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is 30 BEE TERZEYREER A30K - ANEF

days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Include in trade and other payables are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

e
ARE

usb
RMB

TE SRR B IR BUR - AR RN RER A A
A T 3R0R -

BRERNE S REMEMNKERTHIAEREEHE
ERBMZNEEBUIIZERINEZSRHE:

2016 2015
—®-AE —T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

= 1,142

1,042 366

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The balance represented dividend payable by Everbest Return
Limited to Mr. Hu zhixiong, a director of the Company, prior to
the completion of the acquisition of Everbest Return Group. The
balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
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Everbest Return£= [& Al JB 1+ AN A B 28 S 55 1
LEZERBE ZiEAERT RERBERS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
bt e

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HE_Z—"FAA=THILFE

30. PROMISSORY NOTES 30. AARE

On 31 July 2015, the Company issued unsecured promissory
notes with principal value of HK$304,000,000 in respect of the
acquisition of Everbest Return Group. The promissory notes
will mature on 30 July 2020 and bear interest at 1% per annum.
Interests are accrued and paid annually. The Company may
redeem whole or part of the promissory notes at any time from
1 October 2016 up to the date immediately prior to the maturity
date. The promissory notes are measured at amortised costs
using effective interest at 6%.

As a result of the contingent consideration arrangement in
respect of the acquisition of the Everbest Return Group, part of
the promissory notes issued is written back at the end of the
reporting period. No interest shall be accrued and payable in
respect of the promissory notes that are cancelled. Movement of
promissory notes issued is as follows:

R-_ZB—-—RE+A=1+—8 x27AH
Y B Everbest Return&E BT A BE A
304,000,000 7T 2 £ 3 30 5 22 3k o A O B K
BR—E-_TFE+A=+HIH E1%2 FFH
K B -MERFHAERI T - AAB AR
E-RNF+A—BRE=ZZHAR—A L5
] R0 i P S 1 2 330 ok 3B 0 i L BB 3 o i HL BRI
LAG%E B I R AR B S ARG T & o

i Bt U B Everbest Return&E B 51 37 7 sk R £
BLH MPHOBITZ AR EZHERIRE BIRE
B EREEE AN BRERTE R ER
FE-BETERLER2EBHINWNT

HK$'000
FHETT
At 1 July 2014, 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 R-ZE—MWFELA—H-
—E-RFANAZFTEK
—ET—HFtH—H -
Issued upon acquisition date UL EE B HRZs 7T 304,000
Fair value adjustments on date of acquisition REEBRH Y A ERE
(included as part of the consideration (GtABEZEREZ—H5)
transferred) (64,000)
Fair value of consideration transferred (Note 37) BEERE AT E (MFF37) 240,000
Contingent consideration receivable (Note 37) FEM S ARE (F7E37) (8,426)
Imputed interest recognised (Note 9) EHEREERN L (MF9) 13,198
Coupon interest reclassified EFoEAREMENFEREFERZ
as other payables and accruals (Note 28) EmAE (MI5E28) 1,617)
Written back during the year RAFEHEE (97,877)
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RFAAA=1H 145,278

For the details of the offsetting arrangement of the promissory

notes, please refer to note 37 for details.

37 e

BRAAERBREAHTFEZFE F2HME
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31. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES 31. EEHEBE (EE)EE
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities ATRAFEMBEFEEEIN T BRITER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior H(EE)BERAS
years:
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
Impairment plant and
Accelerated of trade equipment
tax and other and customer
depreciation receivables contracts Total
nE -BER

ESRAM REUR
BWHEZ EF&HZ

MEHBIE HE ATERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000
THL TAL THL TAL
Balance at 1 July 2014 RZZE-MELA—AziEH 33 - 4,984 5,017
Credit to profit or loss FABEE (33) - (378) (@11)
Exchange realignment RpE - - (580) (580)
Balance at 30 June 2015and 1July 2015 RZT—RF A=F+HEK
“T-RFEA-BZEH# - - 4,026 4,026
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR FTEE
(note 37) (PiEF37) - (11,193) 87,008 75,815
Credit to profit or loss FAERER - (850) (34,495) (35,345)
Exchange realignment ABE - 750 (5,588) (4,838)
Balance at 30 June 2016 RZE—RERA=TAZEH - (11,293) 50,951 39,658
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused AR 4 HI R - 7N & B ¥ A 49155,350,000/% 7T
tax losses of approximately HK$155,350,000 (2015: —F— A F 145,431,000 T ) 2 K BB
HK$145,431,000) available for offset against future profits, out 75 B 18R] K 8H 2R A s F) - B AR 124,631,000 7T
of which HK$124,631,000 (2015: HK$123,684,000) that may be (ZZ— A 123,684,000/ 7T ) AJ A% #& R HAZE
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining tax losses of B-mear T 2 B K 1816,978,0008 T (=&
HK$16,978,000 (2015: HK$11,608,000) and HK$13,741,000 (2015: — A : 11,608,000/ 7T ) }2.13,741,000/% 7T (=
HK$10,139,000) will be expired within five years and two years T —ARF 10,139,000 7T ) 15 2 BIA A B E 18
respectively from the year in which the respective loss arose. EAEF M RF R WE AR o I 8 F R s T
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax AT 4 S 8 R T gt R TR S 1R SR (AR R R IR
losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. BEE o
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
Number of Share
shares capital
RHER &N
HK$'000
FHETT
Authorised EE
As at 1 July 2014 and 30 June 2015, RZFE-—HFEA—BK
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each —E-RFAA=+A8"
FREE0.05E T T iM%k 10,000,000,000 500,000
Increase on 3 August 2015 RZZE—RFENA=ZREN 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
As at 30 June 2016 R-ZE—XRFAHA=+H 30,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRHBE
As at 1 July 2014 RZE—WFE+H—H 5,192,502,338 259,625
Issue of 140,000,000 new shares of RZE—NFE+—ATFIEL™
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 5 #E 7 By % 17140,000,000%
unlisted warrants in November 2014 TR E0.05/8 7T 2 #T Ak 9 140,000,000 7,000
Issue of 140,000,000 new shares of RZE—WF+ZAfTFEI LT
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 st 7% Rr 5 17140,000,000%
unlisted warrants in December 2014 S EO0.05%8 7T 2 ¥R 140,000,000 7,000
Issue of 160,000,000 new shares of RZZE—RF—RAITEIELED
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 5 % By % 17160,000,000%
unlisted warrants in January 2015 TR E0.05/8 7T 2 #T AR 9 160,000,000 8,000
Issue of 100,000,000 new shares of R-ZE—RE_R/EFLT
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 st 7% Ry 5 17100,000,000%
unlisted warrants in February 2015 R EEC.05% T2 #T AR (7 100,000,000 5,000
Issue of 60,000,000 new shares of R-E—RFE=ZRA/TEFELDT
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 1% 7% B %2 7760,000,0000%
unlisted warrants in March 2015 SR EE0.05% T2 #FT KD 60,000,000 3,000
Issue of 20,000,000 new shares of RZE—RFMATEIELT
HK$0.05 each upon exercise of 2 M5 78 FRF 3£ £720,000,000%
unlisted warrants in April 2015 R EEC.05% T2 #T AR (7 20,000,000 1,000
As at 30 June 2015 RZE—RFA=1H 5,812,502,338 290,625
Issue of 1,046,260,000 new shares of i B D & B4 171,046,260,0008%
HK$0.05 each by way of placing R MEE0.058 T 2 #FAL (7D 1,046,260,000 52,313
6,858,762,338 342,938
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. B& (&)

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

Oon 21 April 2016, an aggregate of 1,046,260,000 new shares
were placed and issued to a total of six placees at an issue
placing price of HK$0.195 per share in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement entered into between
the Company, CCB International Capital Limited and UOB Kay
Hian (Hong Kong) Limited, independent third parties. The details
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 21 April
2016.

On 5 September 2014, an aggregate of 1,000,000,000 unlisted
warrants was fully placed and issued to not fewer than six
placees at the issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the placing agreement entered
between the Company and Kingston Securities Limited, an
independent third party. The holders of the warrants shall
have the rights to subscribe for up to 1,000,000,000 shares in
aggregate at an initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per share,
within one year from the date of issue. Upon the exercise
in full of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants,
1,000,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each will be allotted
and issued by the Company. The details were set out in the
Company's announcement dated 18 August 2015.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, there were a total of
620,000,000 new shares being issued upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the warrants. The proceeds of
HK$155,000,000 from the subscription, which were expected to
be used as the Group’s general working capital and potential
project investments of the Group in the future, have partially
been utilised for payment of deposit of HK$68,000,000 for the
acquisition of Everbest Return Group (Note 21). The remaining
warrants lapsed during the year.
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

33. ARAPMBARREK

2016 2015
—XRE —HEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FET FHET

Non-current assets EMENEEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIELMEE 2 1
Other non-current assets HaIERBEE - 76,000
2 76,001

Current assets BN EE
Other receivables H b 8 WA 717 141
Loan receivables U E 8,426 8,432
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NN @) 832,579 565,784
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR AR S 16,262 14,169
857,984 588,526
Current liability mENAE

Accrued expenses JEETRA X 2,790 1,740
Net current assets mEEEFE 855,194 586,786
Total assets less current liability BERERRBDEE 855,196 662,787

Non-current liability FmBEE
Promissory notes B HER 30 145,278 -
145,278 -
Net assets BEFE 709,918 662,787

Capital and reserves BEAN G
Share capital % 32 342,938 290,625
Reserves ] b) 366,980 372,162
Total equity R EE 709,918 662,787
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continueq)

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

33. RKRATFHMBEMRRE &)

o :

@ EUMBARREREER RENARERER-

(b) Reserves (b) i
Unlisted
Share warrants  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
kL
R RE DREZFE RiEtEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FAET
At 1 July 2014 R=_ZE—WNFE+A—AH 373,745 - (81,878) 291,867
Issue of unlisted warrants BATIE E TR R - 10,000 - 10,000
Unlisted warrants issue expenses EEMRREE TR - (300) - (300)
Issue of shares upon exercise of T IE LT R AR B R BT AR D
unlisted warrants 130,014 (6,014) - 124,000
Loss and total comprehensive AEEHBEREZEAME
expense for the year - - (53,405) (53,405)
At 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015 R-Z—AENA=TAR
—Z—hFtA—H 503,759 3,686 (135,283) 372,162
Lapse of unlisted warrants I E T RARAE B R AR - (3,686) 3,686 -
Issue of new shares by way of placing i i@ AR & 75 =\ B 1T 37 A% 151,708 - - 151,708
Share issue expenses AP BT (2,566) - - (2,566)
Loss and total comprehensive AFEEBFELEZARTERE
expense for the year - - (154,324) (154,324)
At 30 June 2016 R-ZE—XRFEANA=1+H 652,901 - (285,921) 366,980
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34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The employees of the PRC and Mongolia subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes
(“Schemes”) operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the Schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to make the required
contributions under the Schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
HK$7,124,000 (2015: HK$471,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(@) Share option scheme

A new share option scheme (the” Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 12 December 2014 for
the purpose of provide incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
reparations.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may;,
at its discretion, invite any employees, directors, advisors,
consultants, shareholders, contractors, distributors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners and
services providers of and/or to any member of the Group
whom the Board considers in its sole discretion, to have
contributed to the Group from time to time (together
“Participants”) to take up options to subscribe for shares of
the Company (“Options”).

34. RKEFFHE

AEERMATERERBEIRIBHIMER
T8 FTBIMEBEERERAE %UZ%iH
B EARENEEDRRE-

35.

FERREWB AR ZEE I H T BRT2E
ZBERERRRENETE ([%E18]) 2K B -
(RN TH«EEWEZ?@U&EE%&ZEFE

RS
TFE%#%IH’EHjFﬁﬁaT e

Ko REERZA B ZE—BEAR

AEEREAZFAIETEOLA S HE EL
7,124,000/ 7T ( ==& — 1 4 : 471,000/8 7T ) 1E
BEZETENET YEEBEPER

URGOHBER AR S
B S

ARARR—FT—MFE+ A+ -BER®A
s gt & ([RBAERT &1 - ARE
Ko BE D 7% AN 5 [ S 75 1) AR I 1 h B BR A
RERSEE-

(@

ARREFE ([EFE])ARNBER
SERNBERREINRYAEEEE

BOAERR, K AEBEMKE QA

MERES EF FAA BRRER-

DEE D

e HER REABP

%%&%ﬁﬁ&mﬁﬁ HrEr (Gifs [28%E])

s
f#]) e

RRE AN A AR B R AL ([ RB AR
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from
the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options, the
eligible person shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. The Options may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during the option period after the Options has
been granted by the Board. An option period is a period
to be determined by the Board to each eligible person
as being the period during which any Options may be
exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
after the date of grant of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares at stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant which must be a business day; and (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted or to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit").
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior shareholders of the Company’s
approval. No Participants shall be granted an options
which, if exercised in full, would result in such Participants
becoming entitled to subscribe for such number of shares
as, when aggregated with the total number of shares
already issued under all the options previously granted to
him or her which have been exercised, and, issuable under
all outstanding options previously granted to him or her
which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
would exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the
Options. Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess if
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms
therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 12
December 2014.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at the shareholder’s meeting.

No share options had been granted or exercised during the
years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015. As at 30 June 2016
and 2015, no option remained outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme and the expired share option scheme.

35. UROABEBRBZNARRS (&)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. M T A
Categories of financial instruments SR TEMNER
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables ERREKZE (BREESR
(including cash and cash equivalents) ReZEEY) 668,550 218,169
Fair value through profit or loss LREEREAFEAR
— Held-for-trading investments —FBEEERE 69,621 19,213
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - -
Financial liabilities sEEE
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost — H & gt & (& - %8 845k A 229,743 8,279
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREEEERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade, bills
and other receivables, loan receivables, available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due from
associates, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
amount due to a director and promissory notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M I A (#®)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has bank balances, trade, bills and other receivables
and trade and other payables denominated in foreign currencies.
The management considers that the Group mainly exposes to
the currency of USD and RMB.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movements of foreign currency exchange rates.
The Group currently has not entered into any foreign currency
forward contracts to hedge against foreign currency risk.
Management will consider hedging foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities, at the
reporting dates are as follows:

MERBEEBEREE (4)

S B

AEEZRITHER BEHRRFTR BRER
Ko Bt FE WO IR - DA KB 5 B H b FE A SRR A
SNESIE-EEERS AEETEHEET
RAREOHE®RR -

AREBE T ERINEER 2 B - IVEIRE D
BRI o AR EIRE H R AT AN RIS
#) AERINERR - WERE BIEEREE
Mg R

RE|ERH AEEINEHEZEBEER
ERaBEZREENT

2016 2015
—E—XHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Assets BE
usD ETT 829 7,785
RMB AREE 280 437
1,109 8,222

Liabilities aE
usD ETT - 1,142
RMB AREE 1,042 366
1,042 1,508
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. TR I A (#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2015:
5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2015 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of the
possible change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end
for 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number indicates increase in post-tax loss for the year when
HK$ strengthens 5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the
relevant currencies, there would be an equal but opposite impact
on the loss for the year.

MERERBEEBEREE (4)

SAEmEER (&)
BRE T

AT RABF A5 BA AR SR B 3B 7T AR R NS 15
5% (—F—HF :5%) 2BBE-5% (= F
—hF:5%)RAETREEABABREINE
B ER s BRER MAREREENEL
SMNEEERTIRE R B - BURE N ITIEBIEAR L
WIASNESEZ BREIR B - R EFRFL5% (=
ThF:5%)ZINEERESHFEHLBLE -
RAEE  IE8FRRE BT ERINE L IN5%

—T-hF:5%)BHRBRREREM-EET
SARRINE TBES% (— T —HF :5%) K K
HEHAFRE 2 BRBRASFEERZEE -

2016 2015
=EB-AF i

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

uUsb ETT 35 277
RMB AREE (32) 3
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M I A (#®)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to the loan receivables for the year ended 30 June 2016 and 30
June 2015. The Group also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the bank balances and receivables arising
from dealing in listed securities for the year ended 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2015. The Group currently does not have a formal
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point (2015: 100 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015: 100 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 30 June 2016
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$1,036,000 (2015:
decrease/increase by approximately HK$516,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank
balances and receivables arising from dealing in listed securities.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period if equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2015:
10% higher/lower) with all other variables held constant,
the consolidated loss after tax for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$5,813,000 (2015: approximately
HK$1,604,000) mainly due to changes in fair value of held-for-
trading investments.

BEEREREBFERBEEK (4)

FUIF 7 B
HE_Z—R"F~A=+tAk=Z—HF A
=T HLEFE AEENEKREREERTE
MERB-BHEZ_T—RFAA=ZTARKZ=ZT
—RFERNA=ZTRHIEFE FEERRITAR
RALTELSRGEEZEWFIETEERRS
//\Lgﬂ_z_ﬂ °© Z]XE.EEEjLIEIEJQ%lJZ?_QHJ
PR AT EREBEEENERRE  THRER
ERERATEINERBIEL Lo

kAT_HUSQ ENMROTE T ANIESTAELR
ARERAER A RRABET - BESIT
F“mﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂZmiiﬂiﬂﬁﬁ
2EEAKETT o 100(EES (ZZF—FF : 1001E
2¥MZﬁMiH9B#ﬁIEEEAEW%
ERAEAMEEFESE WAEEBYAIEA 4L
ﬂf“@m&@

hﬁftﬂ/Twml%%Lq HF:
100 &S MEMEERBTE AEBES
—E— /\¢/\H_+EIJJ:¢F§*ZE%%M§J§§EH%
S 18N 491,036,000/8 7 ( —E— R F R
LB IN49516,00058 7T ) I JY E B RN AL
B RTEHREE EMBEFEEEA 2 RBIGR
TE TH & F1 R [ B o

Rt E b

$%Eixlﬁtﬁh$ﬁ%&§ﬁ%§k$
EmERE - EREARFE TRER K EHREE
ZIREMAEREILRER -

A (E1E SRR DT

AT S RE DM TR 15 R & B R AR E R A%
RBIEE METE » ME A BEIE 0,5
10% (ZZF—FHF 8N BAD10%)  WrE
E@ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁ\$$E?ém&%E%

B 1IN 495,813,000 T (ZE—HE: 4
wawm%)z%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁZ&
FEEHTE-
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M I A (#®)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and debts investment
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong and PRC which accounted for
4% (2015: 100%) and 96% (2015: 0%) of the total trade and bills
receivable as at 30 June 2016 respectively.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
23% (2015: 27%) of the total trade and bills receivables was due
from one of the Group's largest customers while 76% (2015: 61%)
of the total trade and bills receivables was due from the Group's
five largest customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short term and long term.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. RITH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEEBEEEERBE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELERE (&)
Liquidity tables THEE &K
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRAMIAREETESHBEBNARTE
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables BEEBBER - ZRBBEAER AN KNETEA
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of HnemaErRUBEReRERE -
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. THREAFERETEHERE -
More than  More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
RERY BB—F BBME RER
R-—FR BLRME BOREFE RERELT REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT FET THT TET
At 30 June 2016 RZB-AEAA=TA
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTE2BERE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNER 83,337 - - 83,337 83,337
Amount due to a director EN—ZEZHE 1,128 - - 1,128 1,128
Promissory notes EAEE 1,764 1,764 180,064 183,592 145,278
Total @it 86,229 1,764 180,064 268,057 229,743
At 30 June 2015 R-ZE-EEAA=1H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTE2BERE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNTE 8,279 - - 8,279 8,279
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period for recurring and non-recurring measurement, grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance to the Group's accounting policy.

$EITHE#)

REGEMBRARER 2 A FEFE

TREINZHEHRAEEENRIEEE S
ERMTAZAFEFEFEHZON REAEE
S BRRBBEATEIBREERAFE —E=

30/06/2016
—E2-R"EXA=TH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-& ot 4 E=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Financial assets at FVTPL BEZRBRATFEARZ
SREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEEZHITESREE
held for trading 69,621 - - 69,621
Financial liabilities tRBE
Promissory notes EREE - - 145,278 145,278
30/06/2015
“E-RFR A=TH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—8 E-R E=H Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FTHET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BREZRBRATFEARZ
CREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEBZETESREE
held for trading 19,213 - - 19,213

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in

the current and prior years.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M T A (&)
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that BREMEENUQATEFEZEREERSH
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEZATE
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value BRI ARKEEUHEEY R EAEMAM
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring basis B AN ABEET T

are set out below:

Relationship of
key inputs and
Valuation Significant significant
Financial Fair value technique unobservable unobservable inputs
instruments hierarchy Fair value as at and key inputs inputs Range to fair value
ATEFERABER
EEFER EATTEREALE
$BMIA AFEER RUTHHZATE TEGAZE EATHBEBAYE #E 2R
30/06/2016  30/06/2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-Rf 1%
~B=+H ~A=tH
TERT THT
Held-for-trading Level1 69,621 19,213 Quoted bid pricesin ~ N/A N/A N/A
investments active market
BEERRE £ ERTEMREAE TEA TER TER
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that WHEEEHEELUATFEFECEREER
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but tRMEBBEZAFE(BEEHKELATE)
fair value disclosure are required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRAREERE GAUGBHRRPIRE KA
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded JIEEC o MBELR S BE Y EmERENT
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BHE -
approximate their fair values.
The valuation of promissory notes is under Level 3 hierarchy. The AHEBZHEBE=RATEREBR ZEBUX
valuation technique and key inputs used in arriving at the fair REEZ AN FEEEBHEER T B AR
values of the promissory notes are disclosed in note 37 to the BRME A B ISR MT s F 37 & -

consolidated financial statements.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. WEBKHIELQF

Year ended 30 June 2016

On 2 April 2015, Million Nature Holdings Limited (“Million
Nature”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser, entered into a sales and purchase agreement
(as amended by supplemental agreements dated 22 April
2015, 5 June 2015 and 24 June 2015, respectively) (the “SPA")
with Mr. Hu Zhixiong (a connected person of the Company
and was subsequently appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 28 August 2015) and Ms. Fan Aixian, as
vendors (the “Vendors”). Pursuant to the SPA, the Vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell and Million Nature has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Everbest
Return Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability, at a total consideration of
HK$760,000,000 (to be adjusted based on the after-tax profits
of Everbest Return Group for the year ended 30 June 2016). The
acquisition was completed on 31 July 2015.

BE-_ZE—XR"EXA=1HLEE

RZZE—AEMA B - ARFzHEESR
& [ B A "]Million Nature Holdings Limited
(['Million Nature J) ({EBE T ) B ES 1 5L 4
(KRBl BEAL EBER=F—HENA
TN NHEZEAERRBRITES) RBEEH
Zx (ERER B I ZEEH])IVEED
H (KPS A-—ZE—RENA-+=-H"
—E-RAFEXNAREE-_ZE—AFXAZTH
Acvwazamzes]) ([EEmE]) -BREE
B 2S5 B85 B B4R E S mMillion
Nature# &4 [E Z U BE Everbest Return Limited
(REBHER RS ([RBH#RRES]) M
M2 BRAR) R HETRA BRER
760,000,000/ 7T (#5ZEverbest Returns= (@&,
BT -RFENA=THIEFEZB®ENT
L) - W EBER T —RAFEA=1+—
=R

Fair value of consideration transferred FrEEABEZ L FE
HK$'000
FAT
Cash Re 76,000
Promissory notes issued (note 30) BBTANER (Ki7E30) 240,000
Contingent consideration receivable (note 30) JE W sk A RAB (BT EE30) (8,426)
Total #Et 307,574
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WBKHIB R (&)

Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Everbest
Return Group, promissory notes with nominal value of
HK$304,000,000 were issued. The promissory notes have been
measured at fair value as at completion date, i.e.: 31 July 2015.
The fair value of the liability component is determined by
discounting the nominal amount and the accrued interest at
the discount rate of 6% as determined by the Directors with
reference to valuation carried out by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited (“valuer”), an independent professional valuer. The
discount rate is based on the credit rating of the Company and
bond yield of comparable companies with similar credit rating.
The fair value of the promissory notes on date of acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$240,000,000.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable of
approximately HK$8,426,000 was estimated by the directors
of the Company with reference to a valuation and relevant
sensitivity analysis performed by an independent valuer. The
estimation takes into account the expected shortfall of profits
from the guaranteed profit arrangement as stated in the SPA.

For the contingent consideration arrangement, if the net profits
after tax of Everbest Return Group for the year commencing
from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 based on the 2016 audited
accounts (the “2016 After-Tax Profits”) is less than the
guaranteed profits amount of RMB150,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profits Amounts”) (equivalent to HK$187,500,000 based on the
pre-agreed exchange rate of RMB1=HK$1.25), the retained
completion sum (the “Retained Completion Sum”) payable by
the Company will be reduced by an adjustment amount (the
“Adjustment Amount”) which is calculated as below:

Retained Completion Sum = HK$380,000,000 — Adjustment
Amount

where the Adjustment Amount = (RMB150,000,000 (Guaranteed
Profits Amount) — 2016 After-Tax Profits) x 4.053

BE-E—A"ERNAZTHLEE (&)

{E AU FEEverbest Retumn&EE 2 D R E &
{8 /304,000,000 7T 7 A H Z1E 0 3817 o A,
ERPRERAR (N E—RE+A=+—
A)EAFEFE - BESHD ZAFETIIRS
PIREEEES B MEF BT - R R
MEBESESEBUEEGHEMABRTIEMER
AR ([MEER ) ER Z HERETE AR R
2 EETEREETREEZELRARZ
BAERRRAEBR AL EENRELIBR A
{5 49 /240,000,00078 7T ©

FE WS A B 2 X F{E 498,426,000/8 7T T B A
RAZEER2E LB HEMETZAE
KBRS E D AT T AT - R EFT B R
BEEm&EASRE DA LT TBERE -

MAARELHNE  MIEZT—NFEEZ
BRAsTE ZEverbest RetunEEE —T— 14
tA—RABEE-—R"FAA=-THLEFEZ
BRiiga ([ Z2E—R"ERBREEMN]) DR
1R B A2 5 A R #150,000,0007T ([ 7% &
FERE]  IBARBILHEI25B T ZBERE
[ =R 5+ Z 8 5 72187,500,0007 7T ) » B KA &)
B 2R ST IR (MR ST RIAR] ) iR
FReH (ARSI EDHE - 58
T

R B 5 7K 5/ T8 =380,000,000/% 7T — FHE S 78

& 5= ( AKR%¥150,000,0007T ({RE %A
T8) T RNFBRBBEFN) x 4.053
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HE_T—
37.

NENA=THLEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

If the Adjustment Amount equals to or exceeds HK$380,000,000
(being the initial completion sum) (the “Initial Completion Sum”),
then: (i) no Retained Completion Sum shall be payable by Million
Nature to the Vendors; and (i) the Vendors shall jointly and
severally pay to Million Nature the paid consideration refund
amount (the “Paid Consideration Refund Amount”).

The calculation for the Paid Consideration Refund Amount is as
follows:

Paid Consideration Refund Amount = Adjustment Amount —
HK$380,000,000 (Initial Completion Sum)

where the Paid Consideration Refund Amount shall be capped at
HK$379,999,999.

The potential undiscounted amount of the adjustment on
the consideration under this arrangement is between nil and
HK$759,999,999.

The directors of the Company consider that the acquisition of
Everbest Return Group will benefit the Group through synergies
and economies of scale. The acquisition of Everbest Return
Group had been accounted for using the acquisition method.

Consideration adjustment

Everbest Return Group achieved a profit of approximately
RMB49,805,000 for the year ended 30 June 2016. Accordingly, an
adjustment to the consideration is required based on the above
formula. The calculated Adjustment Amount is approximately
HK$507,611,000 and the Paid Consideration Refund Amount is
approximately HK$127,611,000. As a result of the adjustment,
part of the promissory notes issued will be cancelled. A gain
on write back of promissory notes issued of approximately
HK$97,877,000 was recognised during the year ended 30 June
2016.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WBKHIB R (&)

Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued) BE-ZE—XREXA=THLEE (&)
The fair value identified assets and liabilities of Everbest Return Everbest Returnse B 2 & & & & B W B &
Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ZB#EANAFEWDT
Fair values
AFE
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M E 26,880
Customer contracts EFAEH 339,592
Deferred tax assets BEERIEE E 11,193
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 EWEIA RN E R K H At JE GRIR 115,916
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 1,232
Trade and other payables E 5 L HMFER IR (71,082)
Bank borrowing RITIEE (694)
Amounts due to former shareholders FEAST BT AR 3R IR (21,755)
Income tax payables FEA PSR (8,533)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE (87,008)
Net identifiable assets acquired P g B p B EFE 305,741
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTE A mE 1,833
Fair value of consideration REZRAFE 307,574
Analysis of net cash flow of cash and WEEEMELR S MRASESEY
cash equivalents arising on acquisition: BEeRmEFEON:
Cash consideration fﬁéﬁ{ﬁ 76,000
Less: deposit and earnest money paid in prior BBAFEZENEREREREFES (WiF21)
years (note 21) (76,000)
Add: cash and cash equivalents acquired mBERERE MRS EEY 1,232
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition W ETEREA RS RAFHE 1,232
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WEKHIBAR (&)

Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is not deductible for tax
pUrposes.

The fair value of trade, bills and other receivables at the date
of acquisition amounted to approximately HK$115,916,000. The
gross contractual amounts of those trade and other receivables
acquired amounted to approximately HK$160,690,000 at the
date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
approximately HK$44,774,000.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Everbest Return Group
because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development
and the assembled workforce of Everbest Return Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$1,982,000 (2015: approximately HK$6,902,000) have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the current year, within the
administrative expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Included in the loss for the year is profit of approximately
HK$59,680,000 attributable to the additional business generated
by the Everbest Return Group. Revenue for the year includes
approximately HK$298,741,000 generated from the Everbest
Return Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 July 2015, total revenue
of the Group for the year would have been approximately
HK$386,411,000 and loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$124,884,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 July 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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HEZT
37.

38.

—NEXNA=ZTHILEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
Year ended 30 June 2016 (Continued)

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit of the Group
had Everbest Return Group been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the directors of the Company have:

. calculated depreciation of plant and equipment acquired
on the basis of the fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination rather than
the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements’ and

° determined borrowing costs based on the funding levels,
credit ratings and debt/equity position of the Group after
the business combination.

PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES

On 23 October 2015, the Company completed the disposal of
40% equity interest in PR ASIA Investment, an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration
of HK$13,000,000 to Mr. Ling Yee Fai (“Mr. Ling"), a connected
person of the Group. Upon the completion of the transaction,
the beneficial interest of the Group in PR ASIA Investment
decreased from 100% to 60% without loss of control. An amount
of approximately HK$16,383,000, being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of PR ASIA Investment
and PR ASIA Consultants, a wholly owned subsidiary of PR ASIA
Investment, as at the date of completion have been adjusted to
the non-controlling interests. The net difference recognised by
the Group between (i) the fair value of consideration received by
the Group and (ii) the aggregate of the increase in non-controlling
interest of approximately HK$3,383,000 is recognised in other
reserve.

37.

38.

WM B AR (&)
BE-E—A"ERNAZTHLEE (&)

PAES 7 fHEverbest Retum%laﬁﬁifﬁfm
BWEAER [HZ ] WaE afis Aa
BEQD:

s REVBAREHAHBELNQTE
mIERBR M B mEA R ZEHEFE
T iEmE kR ZITE : &

o WREAKEREHAHRNBENKFE:
EEMRRER R AEEEREK
o

HERKBE QR 250 Eas

RZE—RAF+AZ+=8 AEBEZEKMAAX
EEBFBBATENBEE (ELEEDHER
AafEEIEEENE A FIPR ASIA Investment
A0% 5% HE - £ 18 /513,000,0007% 7T ° &2 5 78 Ak
1% NEB PR ASIA Investment? Bz fE#
1 100%33 2 60% » I 48 2k 25 458 Hi 4 - B &4
16,383,000/ 7T 2 5B (BMZ LB 15 PR ASIA
Investment PR ASIA Investmentz & [ B A 7
DM ABEEFERTHK BB REESE)
Euﬂﬁt’ﬁﬁ RS RE 25 o N2 B R E A (P
R ANASEBFTWEE 2 A FE B (i) FEE R
ﬁs\ N 4858 493,383,000/ ST 2 S F = FE -
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 June 2016

39. HEKMEBQE
BE-_ZE—XR"EXA=1HLEE

On 30 September 2015, Huge Discovery Limited ("Huge R-ZE—RAFALA=Z+AH EARAIZHEESR
Discovery”) (a indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) & B & /2 AlHuge Discovery Limited ([Huge
disposed of the entire issued share capital of Best Four Ocean Discovery | ) it & Huge DiscoveryZ HE#Z 2 &
Limited (together with its subsidiary, collectively referred to as BE2BNEERAR GERENBARSHE
the “Best Four Ocean Group”), a company directly wholly-owned RIBMNEEE]) 2 2BEETRAT BB
by Huge Discovery, to an independent third party at a cash VE=FH BHeNREAI0BIL BIUEEE
consideration of HK$3,000. The Best Four Ocean Group is inactive RF 8 SRS
during the year.

HK$'000

FHER

Total cash consideration received

Analysis of assets and liabilities
which control was lost:

EWER & RERR 3

EREEHEZEERBEDN:

Property, plant and equipment L ER ] 19
Other receivables H b B W FRIE 124
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRSFEY 11
Other payables H b e FIE (194)
Net liabilities disposed of FTEZFaE (40)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR WS 43
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE 2R F5E:
Cash consideration received EWEGR S RE 3
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of BTHEZRERESEEY (11)
(8)
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2015

A.

On 6 October 2014, the Company announced that a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Vida Lab Disposal
Agreement”) was entered into between Ms. Hong Sin
Lam and Mr. Cheong Kuok Hung, as purchasers, who
are independent third parties of the Company and its
connected person (the “Vida Lab Purchasers”), and Island
Kingdom, as vendor. Pursuant to the Vida Lab Disposal
Agreement, Island Kingdom has conditionally agreed to
sell and the Vida Lab Purchasers have conditionally agreed
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Vida Lab, a
company directly wholly-owned by Island Kingdom, at a
cash consideration of HK$16,000,000. Vida Lab is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of generic
western medicines. The disposal of Vida Lab constituted a
discloseable transaction of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules, and was completed on 5 November 2014.
As at 30 June 2015, consideration of HK$15,000,000 was
received from the Vida Lab Purchasers.

39. HEMBAR (&)
BE-_ZE—REX~A=1HLEE

A.

R-ZT—WFE+ARB KRR EMhMILE
BRELERERELEIERE R ([{FiEE
WEH]) HAEEARRREBEALLE
75 =75 Bisland Kingdom{EAE 7
FIVEER® ([REEREERE]) -
1R I (2 33 25 (1 & 137 + 1sland Kingdom
EERGRELEMBEXRESEH
&4 R = U B Island KingdomE 2 & A
AUEELEM s 2EEBTRA HERE
#316,000,000/8 7T (B E M E BN FR
ERHEIEEF AL - IRIRAIZER LT
B RERFEERENAARZETRER
Ry WERZ-ZE—NE+—ARHR
K-R-—Z—ARFENA=1+H BKREE
E B B 75 A {E15,000,000/8 7T ©

HK$'000
FHETT
Total cash consideration ReREEE 16,000
Analysis of assets and BEREEHECEERBEST:
liabilities which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment Wz WE REE 821
Trade and other receivables E 5 K H MW IR 2,274
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 48
Trade and other payable g5 R HMER B (590)
Net assets disposed of FTEZFEE 2,553
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary BB AR 13,447
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEHX RS MAFHE:
Cash consideration HERE 16,000
Less: consideration receivable (note 24) A EUAE (FFE24) (1,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of & : FTHE 2B MRS EEY (48)
14,952
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. HEMBAR (&)

Year ended 30 June 2015 (Continued) BE-_Z—HFAA=1THLFE &)

B. On 5 May 2015, Born Nature Investments Limited B RZZE—RAFHARRA ARAIZEE
(“Born Nature”) (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the % & [t 8 2 "IBorn Nature Investments
company) disposed of the entire issued share capital of Limited ([Born Nature |) HEHBE#E 2
Pure Benefit Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiary, & ¥ ZPure Benefit Holdings Limited
collectively referred to as the “Pure Benefit Group”), (i[RI EMIB 2 R4t & [Pure Benefitse
a company directly wholly-owned by Born Nature, to B z2BEBRITRATFT—E2BIE=
an independent third party at a cash consideration of 7 IRE R (B A25,0007 7T » Pure Benefit
HK$25,000. The Pure Benefit Group is inactive during the SEERFALMETR-
year.

HK$'000

FET

Total cash consideration received EREIR R BEE 25
Analysis of asset which control was lost: EREEGE2EED:

Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY -

Net assets disposed of Frit & 2 FEE -

Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HEM B A & A e 25
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEA RS RAFRAE:

Cash consideration received EWRERE 25

Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of & : FTHE 2 & RIS EEY -

25
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40. COMMITMENTS

41.

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

40. 7KiE
RS ERE
T EF SR

R HIR - AR R BRI A B S BT
R T 5158 B X1 2 R RS AR
M

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Within one year —FA 6,359 6,643
In the second to fifth years inclusive E-EZERF (REEEMTF) 9,725 -
16,084 6,643

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for one to
three years (2015: one to three years) and rentals are fixed for an
average of one year (2015: one year).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transaction based on the terms mutually
agreed between the parties involved:

Transaction with a related party

Rental paid/payable B ERES

REMNFBENEASERERAZMERE
MezlEe HOR - EZE=F2FHER(-F
—hF:—E=F) MRV -FEE (=
T—RF:—F)-

41. BEALXRS

BRERHFHREMBHRAEMBIEREEIN
AEECRIBETO KRB ERNGEFETT
JIBREEALRS:

E-FHEALZXS

2016 2015
—REF —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
2,741 3,135

Rental fee for the use and lease of office premises of the Group
was paid/payable to a related party who is a family member of
the ultimate beneficial owner of the substantial shareholder of
the Company. The transaction constituted continuing connected
transaction as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.

RRARERAZZ MO, AT AKA

AEBRESLEREAATHNE 2 BEA
RN AR_E AR - 5 5 AR AR B

%5

Annual Report 2016 171
20165 =R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © BT 15 $R < B 5

For the year ended 30 June 2016
HEZZ—ARFA=THLFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

Transactions with an associate

41.

BEALTRS &)
H-EBEARZRS

2016 2015

=i —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Advertising expense EERX 84 -
Entertainment expense FHEE 2 A 63 -
147 -

The remuneration of the directors (who are the key management

FRNEBEF(AEEXI2EEAB)ZHFH®

personnel of the Group) during the year were as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Compensation of key management FEEEABZHM
personnel

Short-term benefits SRR 4,772 5,832
Post-employment benefits RIRAE R 49 14
4,821 5,846
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. TEWBAR
Particulars of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June RZE— /—\¢ H +H AR EEMBEA
2016 are set out as follows: AIFBHEHINNT
Place/Country of  Paid up issued Proportion of
incorporation/ Ordinary share Proportion of ownership interest voting power
Name of subsidiary operations capital held by the Company held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BRTRAR
WEARAR EENY /AR EERRA AAARERERERAIN AARRERERBIL FTEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# 54
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BN -“T-1F ZB-AE —T-1F ZB-xE -T-1f
% % % % % %
Chemosino Intemational Limited BV Ordinary share 100 100 n/a n/a 100 100 Investment holding
US$1
Chemosino International Limited ~ XE%#BRES TamER 100 100 TEA TR 100 100 RAER
Bor Nature Investments Limited ~ BVI Ordinary shares 100 100 n/a n/a 100 100 Investment holding
US$1
Born Nature Investments Limited ~ EB&MREE LBRIET 100 100 TER T 100 00 RAER
PRASIA Investment BVI Ordinary shares n/a n/a 60 100 67 100 Investment holding
US$100
PR ASIA Investment RBERRNS EERI00ET TER TER 60 100 67 100 REER
PR ASIA Consultants Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 60 100 67 100 Provision of public
HK$100 relations services
LENIIUN EE LBRI00ET TEA TiEA 60 100 67 100 RELHRE
Golden Brand Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HK$10 and money lending
BERARRAT X LERI0ET TER TiEA 100 100 100 00 REZRRKE
Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining BVI Ordinary share n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Co, Ltd. US$100 and trading of
fluorites
Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining ~ EB#MRES  LERI0ET T A 100 100 100 0 REBBRREELR
Co, Ltd.
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. TEMBAR (#)

Place/Country of  Paid up issued Proportion of
incorporation/ Ordinary share Proportion of ownership interest voting power
Name of subsidiary operations capital held by the Company held by the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ BRTRAR
WEARER EEuY/AF EERRA AARBEREEREAANL AARBEREEAANL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B B
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-1% ZB-RE -T-1F ZB-RE —T-1%
% % % % % %
MCTT Co,, Ltd. Mongolia Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Processing and
US$1,672,669 trading of fluorites
MCTT Co, Ltd. ) BERR 1,672,669 TER TiEA 100 100 100 10 MIREREE4A
e
CN. Taipu (Shenzhen) Investment ~ PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Trading of mineral
Co, Ltd.* HK$50,000,000 products
RARE (R REERAR B 41 450,000,000 TEA TER 100 100 100 0 EEREEM
B
Profit Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Money lending
HK$5,000,000
KBHBERAT B 05,000,000 TER TEA 100 100 100 0 HE
BT
A REAERAT PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 - 100 - Investment holding
RMB20,000,000
A ERZARRAF HE BEBRAARE TER TER 100 - 100 - REBR
20,000,0007T
KAK (BR)REES PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 - 100 - Tading of mineral
BRAA! RMB12,570,000 products
KER (BR)RBEHERAT FE BAREARE Ti#EA TER 100 - 100 - EERRERM
12,570,0007T
IREEMRLRETR PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 - 100 - Provision of coa
BREARF RMB20,000,000 mining services
IRLATREEETR HE BARKARE TER TR 100 - 100 - REEBRFERRE
BREALA 20,000,0007%
# Being wholly foreign owned enterprises. ‘ SNBERE-
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 42. FEMBE AR (4)
Except as specified above, all other subsidiaries are limited bBr EXFTIEEEN FTBEEMMB AR AR
liability companies. RETAF
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the ERIIH $Qﬂ%$%ﬁ$x%%$% E1ES
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the BHEERBEZASBENBE AR - ARAIE
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of ERR *Ei’iwﬁmw}%’&ﬁ]%%lﬁﬁgﬂfm
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the e
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RBEHRR ARABERMHEAREL TEE
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All the other ZH)ME R R] - FrE H AL E QR AR E R
subsidiaries are either investment holding or inactive located FWERB URNEL RBERRFE LT
in Hong Kong, BVI and the PRC. The principal activities of these REMB ARz T EES MM T :
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
EREH FTELEWR WE AT EE
2016 2015
—~E —E-RF
Investment holding Hong Kong 5 1
REER BB
Investment holding BVI 7 4
BEER BEERHE
Investment holding PRC - -
"EZER H
Inactive Hong Kong - 6
mEK BB
Inactive BVI 2 3
mE BEERHE
Inactive PRC 2 -
fmET h
16 14
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. FEMBE AR (4)
The tables below show details of the subsidiary that have non- TRITRAFEHASEBEZNRE IFE
controlling interests material to the Group during the current g Fadl i) PNCIES R
year:
PR ASIA Investment and its subsidiary PR ASIA Investment E [ B 2 7
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
Proportion of effective interests IR ERERE YL
held by non-controlling interests 40% 0%
voting rights held by AR R T IR 24
non-controlling interests 40% 0%
On 23 October 2015, the Company completed the disposal of RZTE—AFE+AZ+=0" KR FTKAR
40% equity interest in PR ASIA Investment, an indirectly non- EEBEEALENBEE(ELE])EHER
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration NAIEEIEEEHNE A FIPR ASIA Investment
of HK$13,000,000 to Mr. Ling Yee Fai ("Mr. Ling"), a connected 2 40%M5 % - 1X{E /313,000,0007% T °

person of the Group.

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRT FHET

Profit attributable to FE VAR e 2 JE A V5

non-controlling interests 1,738 -

Accumulated non-controlling interests Rt 10,521 -
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s HAEBEBEENHEAIFERER 2 AEEN
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to BATZHGEEARBMEBEHINWM T  FX 28

the Group is set out below. The summarised financial information ERBMEDETEEARR R HESRE

below represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

PR ASIA Investment and its subsidiary

42. FEMBE AR (4)
PR ASIA Investment} it B 2 7

As at

30 June 2016

R-ZE—RE

~NA=1H

HK$'000

FTB T

Non-current assets EmBEE 17,260
Current assets RBEE 14,698
Current liabilities R aE (5,655)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE =
Equity attributable to owner of the Company RAREE ANEIEER 15,782
Non-controlling interests SEfE R T 10,521
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 42. FEMBE AR (4)
PR ASIA Investment and its subsidiary (Continued) PR ASIA InvestmentR HKt B A 7 (&)
Year ended
30 June 2016
Bz
—E—RF
~NA=1H
ILFE
HK$'000
FET
Revenue LN 41,216
Other income H bl 18
Expenses =53 (32,003)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEHMNEEEAKE
for the year 9,231
Profit and total comprehensive income FEHMNEEEAKE
for the year
Owner of the Company KAEHER A 7,493
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 1,738
9,231
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR R AR B 7,600
Net cash inflow from operating activities WEREIR S RA TR 12,448
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEEIR M FE (94)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEHHE S RLFRE (19,101)
Net cash outflow RE ML FE (6,747)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the RAFER  BEZEW B QR BT EAER
end of the year. IR
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 43. REHEREBR

On 1 July 2016, PR ASIA Consultants entered into 2 sales and
purchase agreements with Think Smart Global Limited for the
acquisition of 36.7% interests in Bullish Times Media and Bullish
Times Technology. The transaction was completed on 1 July
2016 and the acquisition cost of HK$367,000 and HK$184,000
respectively was satisfied in cash. Following the acquisition, the
two associates became subsidiaries of the Group.

On 10 August 2016, Beijing Dawei New Energy Technology
Services Limited* (b REER F LR FIWRBE ER A A))
("Beijing Dawei”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sales and purchase agreement with
several independent third parties for the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Heze Juwang New Energy Heat Limited* (&
EIEFE ¥ e R Z N B R A 7)) ("Heze Juwang New Energy”).
The transaction was completed on 10 August 2016 at nil
consideration as no capital had been injected into Heze Juwang
New Energy by the vendors. The Group will pay up Beijing
Dawei's portion of registered capital of RMB30,600,000 in Heze

Juwang New Energy.

As there is no reasonable basis in which the directors of the
Company can estimate the provisional values of the assets
and liabilities acquired, the consolidated assets and liabilities
information of Bullish Times Media, Bullish Times Technology
and Heze Juwang New Energy as at the acquisition date are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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* For translation purpose only
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Five-year Financial Summary
DSt

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEERBERBEVBRFENEENEEHEE B}
for the last five financial years is set out below: LT

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=TRLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE —“E-1F “E-mF —E-=F —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FEx FET FER
(restated) (restated)
(L E7I) € :27))
RESULTS E
Revenue WA 366,627 328,507 269,403 44,203 51,252
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable A EHEA AEEREE
to owners of the Company (B#R)RH (130,043) (63,856) (3,556) 11,683 (16,181)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEARE
Total assets BEE 1,018,844 630,470 588,223 478,771 323,252
Total liabilities BafE 301,515 15,337 15,351 6,161 10,114
Net assets EEFE 717,329 665,133 572,872 472,610 313,138
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